
Vestavia Hills 
City Council Agenda 
February 25, 2019 

6:00 PM 

1. Call to Order              

2. Roll Call 

3. Invocation – Sam Williamson, Vestavia Hills Chaplain 

4. Pledge Of Allegiance  

5. Announcements and Guest Recognition 

6. Proclamation – Arbor Week – March 17-23, 2019 

7. Proclamation – National Colorectal Cancer Awareness Month – March 2019 

8. Proclamation – Women In Construction Week – March 3-9, 2019 

9. City Manager’s Report 

10. Councilors’ Reports 

11. Approval of Minutes – February 4 & 5, 2019 (Work Session) and February 11, 2019 

(Regular Meeting) 

Old Business 

12. Ordinance Number 2826 – Rezoning – 3945 Crosshaven Drive; 3955 And 3959 Wall 

Street From Vestavia Hills R-4 (Medium Density Residential District) To Vestavia Hills 

B-2 (General Business District)   (public hearing) 

13. Ordinance Number 2827 – Conditional Use Approval – Granting A Conditional Use For 

A Home Occupation For 727 Hampden Place Circle, Lot 931, Hampden Place Resurvey 

#2; Macy Teresa Yates, Owner   (public hearing) 

14. Ordinance Number 2829 – An Ordinance Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 

Execute And Deliver A Memorandum Of Understanding With The Vestavia Hills Board 

Of Education    (public hearing) 

15. Ordinance Number 2830 – An Ordinance Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 

Execute And Deliver An Access And Parking Agreement With HCI Vestavia I, LLC, An 

Alabama Limited Liability Company (“HCI”)   (public hearing) 

New Business 

16. Resolution Number 5128 – A Resolution Changing A City Council Meeting Date 

17. Resolution Number 5129 - A Resolution Accepting A Bid For Wrecker Services For The 

City Of Vestavia Hills  



New Business (Unanimous Consent Requested) 

18. Resolution Number 5130 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Purchase And 

Equip Two (2) Police Department Vehicles At A Cost Not To Exceed $60,000 To Be 

Expensed From Confiscations   (public hearing) 

First Reading (No Action Taken At This Meeting) 

19. Resolution Number 5131 – Annexation – 90 day – 2424 Magnolia Cove; Lot 7, Magnolia 

Cove Estates; Chase Beard, Owner   (public hearing) 

20. Resolution Number 5132 – Annexation – 90 day – 2423 Magnolia Cove; Lot 8, Magnolia 

Cove Estates; Chase Beard, Owner   (public hearing) 

21. Resolution Number 5133 – Annexation – 90 day – 2419 Magnolia Cove; Lot 9, Magnolia 

Cove Estates; Martin S. Cogen, Owner   (public hearing) 

22. Resolution Number 5134 – Annexation – 90 day – 2415 Magnolia Cove; Lot 10, Magnolia 

Cove Estates; John and Lynda Gay, Owner   (public hearing) 

23. Resolution Number 5135 – Annexation – 90 day – 2409 Magnolia Cove; Lot 11, Magnolia 

Cove Estates; David and Tammy Downard, Owner   (public hearing) 

24. Resolution Number 5136 – Annexation – 90 day – 2405 Magnolia Cove; Lot 12, Magnolia 

Cove Estates; Thomas and Jane Walker, Owner   (public hearing) 

25. Resolution Number 5137 – Annexation – 90 day – 2401 Magnolia Cove; Lot 13, Magnolia 

Cove Estates; Chase Beard, Owner   (public hearing) 

26. Resolution Number 5138 – Annexation – 90 day – 2400 Magnolia Cove; Lot 1, Magnolia 

Cove Estates; Chase Beard, Owner   (public hearing) 

27. Resolution Number 5139 – Annexation – 90 day – 2404 Magnolia Cove; Lot 2, Magnolia 

Cove Estates; Randel Walker, Owner   (public hearing) 

28. Resolution Number 5140 – Annexation – 90 day – 2408 Magnolia Cove; Lot 3, Magnolia 

Cove Estates; David and Jenice Adcock, Owner   (public hearing) 

29. Resolution Number 5141 – Annexation – 90 day – 2412 Magnolia Cove; Lot 4, Magnolia 

Cove Estates; Frank and Phyllis Hamrick, Owner   (public hearing) 

30. Resolution Number 5142 – Annexation – 90 day – 2416 Magnolia Cove; Lot 5, Magnolia 

Cove Estates; Kay Watkins, Owner   (public hearing) 

31. Resolution Number 5143 – Annexation – 90 day – 2420 Magnolia Cove; Lot 6, Magnolia 

Cove Estates; Chase Beard, Owner   (public hearing) 

32. Citizen Comments      

33. Motion For Adjournment 



 
WHEREAS, the economic and aesthetic welfare of the people of Alabama is largely dependent on the 

trees and forests of the State; and  
 
WHEREAS, everyone in the City of Vestavia Hills benefits either directly or indirectly from trees and 

forests; and   
 
WHEREAS, trees provide jobs, products, habitat for wildlife, and recreational opportunities; and    
 
WHEREAS, trees are an invaluable physical and psychological addition to the City, as they provide 

shade, cool the air, reduce noise levels and glare; and   
 
WHEREAS, trees in our City increase property values, enhance the economic vitality of business areas, 

and beautify our community; and   
 
WHEREAS, the management of trees through planning, planting, maintenance, timely removal and 

replacement increases their benefit to our City for both present and future generations; and  
 
WHEREAS,  the Keep Vestavia Hills Beautiful organization, an affiliate of Keep America Beautiful, 

has committed to integrate into its purpose promoting, planting and caring for community 
trees as well as engaging in other activities which ensure that trees are considered in 
community aesthetics.   

 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Ashley C. Curry, by virtue of the authority vested in me as Mayor of the City of 

Vestavia Hills in the State of Alabama, do hereby proclaim the week of February 17-23, 
2019 as 

 
     ARBOR WEEK 

 
and encourage all residents to participate in tree planting activities during this week. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set 
my hand and caused the Seal of the City of 
Vestavia Hills to be affixed this the 19th day of 
February 2019. 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 



 
WHEREAS, colorectal cancer is the second most common cause of cancer deaths for men and women 

in Alabama; and 
 
WHEREAS, the lifetime risk of being diagnosed with cancer of the colon or rectum is 5.5 percent for 

men and 5.1 percent for women in the United States; and   
 
WHEREAS, the survival rate of individuals who have colorectal cancer is 90 percent when detected in 

the early stages versus only a 10 percent survival rate when colorectal cancer is diagnosed 
after it has spread to other organs; and  

 
WHEREAS, when detected early, the five-year survival rates for colon cancer is 90%; however, only 

39% of colorectal cancers is diagnosed at this stage, mostly due to low rates of screening; 
and\ 

 
WHEREAS,  colorectal cancer is preventable, treatable, and beatable in most cases; and 
 
WHEREAS, observing a Go Blue Day for Colorectal Cancer Awareness would provide a special 

opportunity to offer education on the importance of early detection and screening.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Ashley C. Curry, by virtue of the authority vested in me as Mayor of the City of 

Vestavia Hills in the State of Alabama, do hereby proclaim March 1, 2019 as  
 

     GO BLUE DAY for 
COLORECTAL CANCER AWARENESS  

 
in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and urge our citizens who are 45 and over to get a 
colorectal screening because the vast majority of colon cancer deaths can be prevented 
through proper screening and early detection. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set 
my hand and caused the Seal of the City of 
Vestavia Hills to be affixed this the 25th of 
February 2019. 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 



 
WHEREAS, the National Association of Women in Construction (NAWIC) was founded in 

Fort Worth, Texas by sixteen women working in the construction industry in 
1953; and  

 
WHEREAS,  today the NAWIC provides its members with opportunities for professional 

development, education, networking, leadership training, public service; and 
 
WHEREAS, Women In Construction Week will celebrate and highlight women as a visible 

component of the construction industry; and   
 
WHEREAS, Women In Construction Week provides an occasion to raise awareness of the 

opportunities available for women in the construction industry and to emphasize 
the growing role of women in the industry; and    

 
WHEREAS, for more than 60 years, NAWIC has helped women take advantage of the 

opportunities in construction and empowered women to be successful in a 
predominately male dominated sphere which is important to ensuring equality for 
generations to come.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Ashley C. Curry, by virtue of the authority vested in me as Mayor of the 

City of Vestavia Hills in the State of Alabama, do hereby recognize the National 
Association of Women in Construction Greater Birmingham Chapter 53 and 
proclaim the week of March 3-9, 2019 as 

 
     WOMEN IN CONSTRUCTION WEEK 

 
and encourage our citizens to congratulate the organization and its many 
dedicated volunteers for their steadfast work on behalf and support of women in 
construction. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have 
hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal 
of the City of Vestavia Hills to be affixed 
this the 25th day of February 2019. 
 
 
 
__________________________________
_______ 
Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 



City Council Minutes 
February 4 & 5, 2019 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

WORK SESSION 
 

FEBRUARY 4 AND 5, 2019 
 

The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in a special work session on these two dates 
in the Executive Conference Room at 8:00 AM, following posting/publication as required 
by Alabama law.  The Mayor called the meeting to order at 8 AM on February 4, 2019: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Mayor Ashley C. Curry 

Kimberly Cook, Councilor 
      Paul J. Head, Councilor 

George Pierce, Councilor 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT:   Rusty Weaver, Mayor Pro-Tem 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jeff Downes, City Manager  
      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
      Melvin Turner, Finance Director 

Brian Davis, Public Services Director 
Marvin Green, Fire Chief 
Dan Rary, Police Chief 
Taneisha Tucker, Library Director 
Keith Blanton, Building Services Director 
Darrin Estes, Director of Information Technologies 
Cinnamon McCulley, Communications Specialist 
Jason Hardin, Police Captain 
Christopher Brady, City Engineer 

 
 The Mayor called the work session to order.  He stated that Mr. Weaver left to go 
to the doctor suffering from strep and flu symptoms.  He then turned the floor over to Jeff 
Downes. 
 
 Mr. Downes gave an overview of the agenda and the issues that would be discussed 
during the meeting today.  He stated that Department Heads are present today to assist in 
this planning and reviewing effort and tomorrow, the Council can drill down on evaluation 
of 2018 goals and establishing new goals and efforts for 2019. 
 



City Council Minutes 
February 4 & 5, 2019 

Page 2 
 

 First items of discussion included a review of the previous year strategic priorities 
and then drilled into a financial review of the FY19 first quarter revenue results, fund 
balance summary and Community Spaces Fund summary of activities. 
 
 Mr. Downes and Cinnamon McCulley, Communications Specialist, led a 
discussion concerning a recent Vestavia Listens Strategic Planning Topic which covered a 
range of questions in lieu of the community studies done via mail order on alternate years.  
He stated that they had a good response on this survey.  He reviewed the demographics of 
responders as well as the results.  The Council and Mr. Downes discussed the results at 
length.  At the conclusion, Ms. McCulley suggested drafting a newsletter periodically to 
update residents on actions of the City Council along with other city issues to improve 
communication throughout the City. 
 
 Mr. Downs updated the Council on the opioid litigation progress. 
 
 The Council and Mr. Downes delved into an in-depth discussion to evaluate the 
proposed organization structure for Parks and Recreation along with Civic Functions for 
the new and expanded program considerations post Community Spaces.  A proposed 
expanded organizational chart was explained which brings the programming in-house with 
a few additional employees. 
 
 Ken Upchurch, TCU, and Stephen Allen, Williams Blackstock Architects, led the 
updated discussions on the progress of the following projects: 
 

 Discussion on design development phase approvals for Wald Park and Cahaba 
Heights 

 Crosshaven Road project 
 SHAC Grant Funded Project 

 
Christopher Brady, City Engineer, gave a presentation on internally managed 

projects including: 
 

 Sidewalk projects 
 Paving projects 
 Drainage projects 
 ALDOT funded projects 
 APPLE Grant Intersection Study  

 
 

Dr. Todd Freeman, Superintendent of Education, and Mr. Downes then led a 
discussion concerning the collaborative efforts of the City and the Board of Education as 
both progress through their respective building/rebuilding programs.  He stated that a MOU 
has been drafted to assist in guiding both entities through the planning process to coordinate 
for the best utilization of the fields and facilities of both.  Mr. Downes stated that the MOU 
would come forward to the Council and the Board soon. 

 



City Council Minutes 
February 4 & 5, 2019 

Page 3 
 

 Taneisha Tucker gave a presentation concerning the Library in the Forest 
preliminary strategic planning efforts.  Discussion ensured into satellite and/or remote 
access to library materials, etc. 

 
 Mr. Downes reviewed his ideas of development opportunities in the Blue Lake 
Road area and solicited the Council’s thoughts on the possibility of a public/private 
partnership to build a road connecting Blue Lake Drive with Timberlake Road. 
 
 Mr. Downes and the Mayor reviewed legislation that may come in the 2019 
Legislative Session that would be on interest to the City.  The reviewed the proposed gas 
tax and the distribution of the gas revenues; proposed changes to the Employees Retirement 
System and employee immunities.  Mr. Downes indicated that Resolutions should be 
coming forward for Council action concerning these issues. 
 
 Umang Patel gave an update on Municipal Court following restructuring issues and 
visions for the future including establishing a new technology fund. 
 
 There being no further business, the Mayor recessed the meeting until Tuesday 
morning at 8 AM. 
 
 
 On February 5, 2019, the Mayor called the work session to order at 8 AM and 
turned the floor over to Jeff Downes.  The City Manager, Mayor and City Council 
discussed Federal earmarking strategies and opportunities. 
 
 The Council then began wrap up conversations.  Mr. Brady and Mrs. Tucker came 
back in to review their presentations and suggestions for moving forward.  Priorities and 
goals for 2019 were discussed and finalized. 
 
 There being no further business, the work session adjourned at 1:00 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 



City Council Minutes 
February 11, 2019 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

FEBRUARY 11, 2019 
 

The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 6:00 PM, 
following publication and posting pursuant to Alabama law.  Mayor Curry called the meeting to 
order and the City Clerk called the roll with the following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  

Mayor Ashley C. Curry  
Rusty Weaver, Mayor Pro-Tem 

      Kimberly Cook, Councilor  
Paul Head, Councilor 

      George Pierce, Councilor 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jeff Downes, City Manager 
      Patrick H. Boone, City Attorney 
      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
      George Sawaya, Asst. Finance Director 
      Dan Rary, Police Chief 
      Jason Hardin, Police Captain 
      Marvin Green, Fire Chief 
      Christopher Brady, City Engineer 
      Cinnamon McCulley, Communications Specialist 
 

Butch Williams, Vestavia Hills Senior Chaplin; Pastor of Care and Support Ministries, 
Vestavia Hills United Methodist Church, led the invocation followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS, GUEST RECOGNITION  
 

 Mr. Head announced that the Parks and Recreation Board will be having a regular monthly 
work session on February 22, 2019 in the Executive Conference Room beginning at 7:30 
AM. 

 Mr. Weaver announced the regular meeting of the Planning and Zoning Commission will 
begin at 6 PM on Thursday, February 14, 2019.   

 Mayor Curry announced the next Freedom From Addiction Coalition meeting will be 
April 4, 2019 at the Vestavia Hills United Methodist Church.  He reminded everyone that 
the monthly meetings are held in alternate cities.  Breakfast is provided at this very 
important event.  Informational flyers are in the back of the Chamber. 



City Council Minutes 
February 11, 2019 

Page 2 
 

 Mayor Curry stated that there are some items on the agenda in anticipation of upcoming 
legislative session.  He stated that they plan to meet with legislators in advance of that 
session. 

 Mayor Curry stated that they are working with Congressman Palmer on another issue 
which will be discussed later in this meeting concerning small cell technology. 

 The Mayor stated that a Bicentennial luncheon will be held on March 11, 2019 in the 
Dogwood Room.  He stated that this is a joint effort by the Historical Society and the 
Senior Citizens’ Association.  Entertainment provided will include Three on a String, a 
band that mixes history along with their music.  He stated that they will spot light histories 
of Vestavia and of the State of Alabama.  Reservations are due by March 5 by contacting 
Joanie Alfano in the Mayor’s office. 

 Mr. Pierce welcome Jeff Florio and Erin Holtz to the meeting representing the Chamber 
of Commerce. 

 Mrs. Cook announced the Board of Education meeting to be held on February 25, 2019 
beginning at 4 PM.  

 Mr. Downes announced the upcoming severe weather preparedness sales tax holiday 
weekend whereby certain items can be purchased tax free. 

 
 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

 Mr. Downes highlighted some action items derived from last week’s Strategic Planning 
Session.  He stated that some of the action items derived from the results of the Vestavia 
Listens survey which provided interesting statistics.  He stated that many residents had 
indicated that they have no idea what the Community Spaces Plan is and how is it being 
implemented.  Many individuals indicated that they wish to receive more email 
communication in order to stay informed on Council actions and Community News.  
Therefore, the Communications Director has begun a sign-up for a newsletter to be sent 
out a couple of times a month to advise residents of happenings throughout the City.  He 
encouraged everyone to sign up for this email which will be an easy constant reminder to 
allow people to keep up with what’s happening within the community as well as actions 
of the City Council. 

 Mr. Downes stated that, during the planning session, there were further conversations 
regarding future actions and collaborations with the Board of Education.  He stated that 
they have drafted a Memorandum of Understanding that sets forth a map to guide both the 
Council and the Board as both progress through their respective rebuilding programs.  Mr. 
Downes stated this approval will be upcoming at the next Council meeting and Dr. 
Freeman indicated he will attempt to parallel the Council’s approval with the Board’s 
approval of the MOU. 

 Mr. Downes stated that legislative priorities were discussed at length at the planning 
session and that tonight’s agenda contains several Resolutions to be used to inform the 
City’s legislators toward actions that should benefit the City. 

 Mr. Downes stated that the City of Mountain Brook have set their focus efforts on traffic 
patterns/problems along Overton Road all the way from Highway 280 to River Run and 
to the entrance of Liberty Park.   At certain times of the day, there are traffic challenges 



City Council Minutes 
February 11, 2019 

Page 3 
 

along this stretch of roadway.  He stated that there are ongoing conversations regarding 
an APPLE grant to study intersection improvements to assist in traffic flow through this 
area.  He indicated that he was asked by Mountain Brook for his comments and he has 
briefed them on what Vestavia Hills is working on for their use in their efforts. 

 
 

COUNCILOR REPORTS 
 

 Mr. Pierce reminded everyone of the regular monthly luncheon of Chamber tomorrow at 
11:30 at the Vestavia Country Club. 

 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 The minutes of the following meeting was presented for approval:  January 28, 2019 
(Regular Meeting). 
 
MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of the January 28, 2019 

(Regular Meeting) and approve them as presented was by Mr. Weaver and second 
by Mrs. Cook.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes    
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes    
   Mayor Curry – yes   Motion carried. 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5122 
 

Resolution Number 5122 – A Resolution Establishing A Sidewalk Construction Policy For 
The Installation Of Public Sidewalks With Financial Assistance From Area 
Residents   (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5122 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mr. 

Pierce. 
 
 Mr. Downes explained that there is an established master sidewalk plan, first drafted back 
in the mid-2000’s.  This plan has had one update.  That plan is informative to the Council as 
funding plans are put together for construction of sidewalks now being implemented within the 
Community Spaces plan.  This master plan is also used for commercial developments and 
subdivisions in certain areas and along certain roadways in the City where the developer of the 
development installs those sidewalks.  In areas where they cannot install sidewalks, they 
contribute to a sidewalk fund.  He stated there are several opportunities to work with stakeholders 
to update the master sidewalk plan, but there are also opportunities that would allow an ad hoc 
project to get sidewalks built in other area.  He stated the city currently has one of those 
opportunities to be heard tonight and so this policy needed to be drafted to allow for a 



City Council Minutes 
February 11, 2019 

Page 4 
 

public/private construction be done with contributions from private parties, including residents 
for design and construction. He read the parameters of the proposed sidewalk plan.   
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one further to address 
the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes    
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes    
   Mayor Curry – yes   Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2828 
 

Ordinance Number 2828 – An Ordinance Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 
Execute And Deliver An Agreement With KADCO, LLC For Construction 
Of Sidewalks On Poe Drive   (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2828 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mrs. 

Cook. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that there is a section of Poe Drive being proposed for sidewalk 
construction to connect to some existing sidewalks.  Also included is some verbal commitments 
from Mountain Brook to construct sidewalks through the commercial areas.  This segment meets 
all the criteria of the previous sidewalk policy and this is an agreement with KADCO which was 
reviewed and drafted by the City Attorney who will construct the sidewalks and the City will 
contribute $49,999.99 with all necessary performance bonds.  The construction will be done by 
KADCO.  The City Engineer can speak to the specifics of the project and there is a set of 
construction drawings that have been drafted and a commitment on the part of KADCO to do 
preconstruction meetings with residents and the City would have to issue the notice to proceed 
before any work commences.  Mr. Downes stated that funding would be derived from the 
Community Spaces Fund. 
 
 Mr. Brady gave the specifics of the project.  He stated they wish to begin construction as 
soon as possible and as soon as this contract is signed, they will coordinate with KADCO to begin 
the meetings and construction. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that Poe Drive has been on the repaving list for a long time but 
construction in the area has delayed this work.  This work should help to allow the curb, gutters, 
sidewalks and then the paving and widening of the road. 
 
 Mr. Pierce asked about ADA codes, etc. 
 
 Discussion ensued as to the approvals of these projects, the amount of city contributions, 
bidding, budgeted funds for repaving, etc. 
 



City Council Minutes 
February 11, 2019 

Page 5 
 

 Mr. Boone stated that this complies with the Alabama Public Works bid law.  The city 
doesn’t make any payments until the work is complete and the City Engineer accepts the 
improvements.  He stated that the bonding provides the maximum protection. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.   
 
 Jenny Lysinger, 3767 Poe Drive, thanked the Council for working in the interests of the 
residents of this community.  She stated that the Mountain Brook development will vastly impact 
their neighborhood.  She stated that she loves it that the developer that is doing so much work on 
their street is the one contributing toward these sidewalks.  She asked about the drainage and 
stated that she believes all the drainage is on the west side of the street and if the sidewalk goes 
on that side, will that put drainage further into their yards. 
 
 Mr. Brady stated that there is discussion toward improvements but the drainage plans are 
that the pipes are already in the ground but there’ll be some curb and inlets to drain the water. 
 
 There being no one further to address the Council, the Mayor called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes    
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes    
   Mayor Curry – yes   Motion carried. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5123 
 

Resolution Number 5123 – A Resolution In Support Of 2019 Legislation Regarding Tier I 
And Tier II Of The Employee Retirement System Similar In House Bill 
Number 344 Proposed In The 2018 Regular Session Of The Alabama 
Legislature 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5123 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mr. 

Pierce. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that this legislation was attempted last year but ultimately failed.  He 
stated that most of the employees here at the City are a part of Tier I.  Newer employees, hired 
after January 2013, were moved to Tier II.  This move has proven detrimental toward retaining 
newer employees for a variety of reasons related to the Tier II provisions.  He stated when this 
new bill is filed this year, it will allow the City to opt into allowing these Tier II employees to pay 
a higher rate and opt into the Tier I benefits.   
 
 Mrs. Cook stated that recruiting and retaining first responders is very important toward 
the emergency services of this City. 
 
 The Mayor stated that is will be to let our legislators know that we support our employees. 
 



City Council Minutes 
February 11, 2019 

Page 6 
 

 There being no one further to address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing 
and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes    
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes    
   Mayor Curry – yes   Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5124 
 

Resolution Number 5124 – A Resolution In Support Of Protecting Local Control Over 
Public Streets And Public Assets And A Call On Congress To Reaffirm Such 
Local Control By Reversing Recent FCC Actions Related To Wireless 
Facilities By Enacting H.R. 53 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5124 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mr. 

Pierce. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that this new small technology has been discussed at length which is 
coming around with the new 5G technology where cell companies come in with smaller antennae 
to boost cell phone coverage in a stealth manner utilizing utility poles.  He stated that the Council 
adopted an Ordinance to regulate the technology and establish permitting processes and fee 
schedules.  This Federal regulation will supersede some of this control.  This Resolution calls on 
Congress to address this FCC regulation through legislation to allow the cities to keep this control 
through HR53.  There are currently a couple of sites being evaluated, but as time goes by, this 
technology will grow. 
 
 There being no one further to address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing 
and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes    
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes    
   Mayor Curry – yes   Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5125 
 

Resolution Number 5125 – A Resolution To Change The Regularly Scheduled City Council 
Meeting From March 25, 2019 To March 18, 2019 In Lieu Of Spring Break 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5125 was by Mrs. Cook seconded by Mr. 

Head. 
 
 The Mayor explained that this Resolution will reschedule the regular meeting of the City 
Council from March 25 to March 18 in observance of Spring Break.  He stated this will also move 
up the regular work session from 6 PM to 5 PM. 
 



City Council Minutes 
February 11, 2019 

Page 7 
 

 There being no one further to address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing 
and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes    
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes    
   Mayor Curry – yes   Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5126 
 

Resolution Number 5126 – A Resolution Expressing Support For The Alabama Legislature 
During The 2019 Regular Session To Add An Additional Motor Fuel Excise 
Tax And Requesting The Legislators To Support Said Legislation And To 
Provide For An Alternate Formula For Distribution Of Revenues To More 
Adequately Represent The Demographics Of Cities And Towns In The State 
Of Alabama 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5126 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mr. 

Pierce 
 
 The Mayor stated that the distribution of gasoline revenues was set in back in the 1960’s 
and it doesn’t reflect today’s demographics.  This Resolution requests a change in the distribution 
of these revenues throughout the state to recognize the need from municipalities for a larger 
portion of the distribution. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that looking at long term plans on keeping up repaving of roads and 
rely on the current distribution, we would be woefully short on repaving our roadways every 20 
years.  The ability to gain more resources helps the City with repaving efforts in order to not pull 
monies form the general fund.  If the City doesn’t get more revenue, the general fund will have 
to fill that loss. 
 
 There being no one further to address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing 
and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes    
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes    
   Mayor Curry – yes   Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5127 
 
Resolution Number 5127 – A Resolution Expressing Support For The Alabama Legislature 

During The 2019 Regular Session To Add Placement Of Municipal 
Employees Under The Protection Of The Municipal Liability Caps 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5127 was by Mr. Pierce seconded by Mrs. 

Cook. 
 



City Council Minutes 
February 11, 2019 

Page 8 
 

 The Mayor stated that recently, municipal employees are being sued for performing 
services within their scope of work and there is no protection for these employees.  The Mayor 
stated that is unfair to the employee because they are working with the scope of their duties.  He 
stated there will be opposition of this legislation and the cities need to unite to get this corrected. 
 
 There being no one further to address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing 
and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes    
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes    
   Mayor Curry – yes   Motion carried. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS (REQUESTING UNANIMOUS CONSENT) 
 
FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)  
 
 The Mayor stated that the following resolutions and/or ordinances will be presented at a 
public hearing at the Council’s next regular meeting on February 25, 2019, at 6:00 PM. 

 Ordinance Number 2826 – Rezoning – 3945 Crosshaven Drive; 3955 And 3959 Wall 
Street From Vestavia Hills R-4 (Medium Density Residential District) To Vestavia Hills 
B-2 (General Business District)   (public hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 2827 – Conditional Use Approval – Granting A Conditional Use For 
A Home Occupation For 727 Hampden Place Circle, Lot 931, Hampden Place Resurvey 
#2; Macy Teresa Yates, Owner   (public hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 2829 – An Ordinance Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 
Execute And Deliver A Memorandum Of Understanding With The Vestavia Hills Board 
Of Education    (public hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 2830 – An Ordinance Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 
Execute And Deliver An Access And Parking Agreement With HCI Vestavia I, LLC, An 
Alabama Limited Liability Company (“HCI”)   (public hearing) 

 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 

 
 None. 
 
 At 7:34 PM, Mr. Weaver made a motion to adjourn.  The meeting adjourned at 6:55 PM. 
 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 



City Council Minutes 
February 11, 2019 

Page 9 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2826 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2826 
  

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM VESTAVIA HILLS R-
4 TO VESTAVIA HILLS B-2 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Vestavia Hills R-4 (medium 

density residential district) to Vestavia Hills B-2 (general business district):  

3945 Crosshaven Drive; 3955 and 3959 Wall Street 
Village Gardens, Owner(s) 

 
More Particularly Described as Follows: 
 

Parcel I.  A part of the South ½ of the SE ¼ of the SE ¼ of 
Section 15, Township 18 Range 2 West, more nearly 
described as follows:  Begin 495 feet North of the SW corner 
for the point of beginning; thence run East 100 feet; thence 
run North 82.5 feet; thence run West 100 feet; thence run 
South 82.50 feet to the point of beginning.  Situated in 
Jefferson County, Alabama. 
 
Parcel II.  A part of the South ½ of the SE ¼ of the SE ¼ of 
Section 15, Township 18 Range 2 West, more nearly 
described as follows:  Begin 330 feet North of the SW corner 
thence run East 296 feet for the point of beginning; thence 
run North 82.5 feet; thence run east 100 feet; thence South 
82.50 feet; thence West 100 feet to the point of beginning.  
Situated in Jefferson County, Alabama. 
 
Parcel III.  The East 190 feet of the North 82.5 feet of the 
South 495 feet of the West 396 feet of the SE ¼ of the SE ¼ 
of Section 15, Township 18, Range 2 West, situated in 
Jefferson County, Alabama. 

 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that said zoning is conditioned upon the 

following conditions: 



Ordinance Number 2826 
Page 2 

1. Approval of zoning shall be based substantially upon the site plan 
presented;  

2. No access to Wall Street;  
3. Rezoning will not be file until property has been re-platted to a 

single lot, approved by the Vestavia Hills Planning and Zoning 
Commission, recorded with the Jefferson County Judge of Probate 
and a copy submitted to the Office of the City Clerk. 

 
 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 25th day of February, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2826 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 25th day of February, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New Merkle 
House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2019. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2826 
Page 3 

 



1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     JANUARY 19, 2019

CASE: P-0119-02

REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning From Vestavia Hills R-4 to Vestavia Hills B-2

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 3945 Crosshaven Dr. & 3955 Wall St.

APPLICANT/OWNER: Village Gardens, LLC

REPRESENTING AGENT: Todd Rogers

GENERAL DISCUSSION: Applicant is seeking to rezone 3945 Crosshaven Dr. & 
3955 Wall St. from Vestavia Hills R-4 to Vestavia Hills B-2 for a Chick-fil-A
restaurant. A portion of the land of the land required is already zoned B-2 and is 
exempt from the request. The proposed request meets all the requirements for the B-2
zoning, including parking.

The project takes into account the expansion improvements on Crosshaven Dr. 
Additionally; CFA will be responsible for a left turn lane into the site as required by a 
traffic study. On the frontage facing Wall St., fencing and landscaping will buffer the 
edge with no access granted. Access to the Rite-Aid has been stubbed but will not be 
used at this time.

CAHABA HEIGHTS COMMUNITY PLAN: The plan calls for Retail/Mixed Use 
for the frontage along Crosshaven Dr. and for High Density Residential along Wall 
St. The request is less intense than what the plan call for along Wall St. since there 
will be no access granted.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2826 



2

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

MOTION Mr. Gilchrist made a motion to recommend rezoning approval for 3945
Crosshaven Dr., 3955 & 3959 Wall St. from Vestavia Hills R-4 to Vestavia Hills B-2 with the 
following conditions:

1. Approval based on site plan presented;
2. No access will be granted to Wall St.;
3. Rezoning will not be final until property is 

replatted.

Additionally, the Commission suggests that the Design Review Board pay special attention the
landscaping along Wall St. Second was by Mr. House. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as 
follows:

Mr. Goodwin – yes Mr. Gilchrist – yes
Mr. Romeo – yes Mr. Larson – yes
Mr. Weaver– yes Mr. House – yes 
Mrs. Barnes – yes
Motion carried.

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2826 



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2826 



LA
N

D
SC

A
PE

 R
EQ

U
IR

EM
EN

TS
A

.
ST

R
EE

T 
FR

O
N

TA
G

E
 L

A
N

D
SC

A
PI

N
G

R
EQ

U
IR

ED
1.

Pr
ov

ide
 an

 8'
 w

ide
 la

nd
sc

ap
e s

trip
 al

on
g t

he
 le

ng
th 

of 
pa

rki
ng

 an
d v

eh
icu

lar
 ci

rcu
lat

ion
 ar

ea
s t

ha
t e

xte
nd

wi
thi

n 2
5' 

of 
the

 fr
on

t lo
t li

ne
s. 

(W
es

t- 
Cr

os
sh

av
en

 D
r; 

Ea
st-

 W
all

 S
tre

et)
2.

1 C
an

op
y t

re
e p

er
 50

 LF
 or

 1 
un

de
rst

or
y t

re
e p

er
 40

 LF
W

es
t: 1

97
 LF

 / 5
0 =

 4 
Ca

no
py

 Tr
ee

s o
r 1

97
 LF

 / 4
0 =

 5 
Un

de
rst

or
y T

re
es

Ea
st:

 16
4 L

F 
/ 5

0 =
 3 

Ca
no

py
 Tr

ee
s o

r 1
64

 LF
 / 4

0 =
 4 

Un
de

rst
or

y T
re

es
3.

1 -
 3 

Ga
l. s

hr
ub

 pe
r 3

 LF
 

W
es

t: 1
97

 LF
 / 3

 =
 66

 S
hr

ub
s

Ea
st:

 16
4 L

F 
/ 3

 =
 55

 S
hr

ub
s

PR
O

VI
D

ED
1.

8' 
W

ide
 la

nd
sc

ap
e s

trip
pr

ov
ide

d
2.

W
es

t: 4
 W

illo
w 

Oa
k

Ea
st:

 3 
Ma

ple
3.

W
es

t: 4
2 N

ee
dle

po
int

 H
oll

y, 
34

 S
un

sh
ine

 Li
gu

str
um

 (7
5 S

hr
ub

s)
Ea

st:
 37

 N
ee

dle
po

int
 H

oll
y, 

35
 M

isc
an

thu
s (

72
 S

hr
ub

s)
B

.
PE

R
IM

ET
ER

 L
A

N
D

SC
A

PI
N

G
R

EQ
U

IR
ED

1.
5' 

wi
de

 la
nd

sc
ap

e s
trip

 al
on

g t
he

 le
ng

th 
of 

pa
rki

ng
 an

d v
eh

icu
lar

 ci
rcu

lat
ion

 ar
ea

s n
ot 

ad
jac

en
t to

 ro
ad

wa
ys

.
2.

1 C
an

op
y t

re
e p

er
 50

 LF
 or

 1 
un

de
rst

or
y t

re
e p

er
 40

 LF
No

rth
: 2

85
 LF

/50
= 6

 C
an

op
y T

re
es

 or
 28

5/4
0=

 7 
Un

de
rst

or
y T

re
es

So
uth

: 2
24

/50
= 5

 C
an

o p
y T

re
es

 or
 22

4/4
0=

 6 
Un

de
rst

or
y T

re
es

N.
 E

as
t: 8

2 L
F/

50
 = 

2 C
an

op
y T

re
es

 or
 82

LF
/40

 = 
2 U

nd
er

sto
ry 

Tr
ee

s
3.

1 -
 3 

Ga
l. s

hr
ub

 pe
r 3

 LF
 

No
rth

: 2
85

 LF
/3=

 95
 S

hr
ub

s
So

uth
: 2

24
/3=

 75
 S

hr
ub

s
N.

 E
as

t: 8
2 L

F/
3 =

 27
 S

hr
ub

s
PR

O
VI

D
ED

1.
Mi

n. 
5' 

wi
de

 la
nd

sc
ap

e s
trip

pr
ov

ide
d a

lon
g v

eh
icu

lar
 ci

rcu
lat

ion
 ar

ea
s n

ot 
ad

jac
en

t to
 ro

ad
wa

ys
2.

No
rth

: 2
 B

os
qu

e E
lm

, 3
 C

re
pe

 M
yrt

le,
 2 

Re
db

ud
So

uth
: 5

 C
re

pe
 M

yrt
le,

 1 
Re

db
ud

N.
 E

as
t: 3

 C
re

pe
 M

yrt
le

3.
No

rth
: 3

0 A
nis

e, 
12

 S
un

sin
e L

igu
str

um
, 2

4 A
da

gio
, 1

5 H
yd

ra
ng

ea
, 1

4 D
ist

yli
um

 (9
5 S

hr
ub

s)
So

uth
: 3

4 A
nis

e, 
19

 S
un

sh
ine

 Li
gu

str
um

, 2
3 D

ist
yli

um
 (7

6 S
hr

ub
s)

N.
 E

as
t: 2

2 N
ee

dle
po

int
, 8

 D
ist

yli
um

 (3
0 S

hr
ub

s)
C

.
IN

TE
R

IO
R

 L
A

N
D

SC
A

PI
N

G
R

EQ
U

IR
ED

1.
Th

er
e s

ha
ll b

e a
t le

as
t 2

0 S
F 

of 
int

er
ior

 la
nd

sc
ap

ing
pe

rp
ar

kin
g s

pa
ce

.
69

 sp
ac

es
 x 

20
= 

13
80

 S
F 

of 
int

er
ior

 la
nd

sc
ap

e a
re

a
2.

Ev
er

yp
lan

tin
g a

re
a c

on
tai

nin
g a

 re
qu

ire
d t

re
e s

ha
ll b

e a
t le

as
t 7

5 S
F 

an
d 7

' in
 w

idt
h

3.
Th

er
e s

ha
ll b

e a
 ca

no
py

 tr
ee

 w
ith

in 
80

' o
r a

n u
nd

er
sto

ry 
tre

e w
ith

in 
60

' o
f e

ve
ry

pa
rki

ng
 sp

ac
e.

PR
O

VI
D

ED
1.

63
82

 S
F 

of 
int

er
ior

 la
nd

sc
ap

e a
re

a 
2.

Int
er

ior
 la

nd
sc

ap
e a

re
as

 w
ith

 a 
tre

e h
av

e a
 m

in.
 w

idt
h o

f 7
' a

nd
 75

 S
F

3.
Ev

er
yp

ar
kin

g s
pa

ce
 is

 w
ith

in 
80

' o
f a

 ca
no

py
 tr

ee
 or

 60
' o

f a
n u

nd
er

sto
ry 

tre
e (

se
e t

re
e c

irc
les

)
D

.
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 L

A
N

D
SC

A
PI

N
G

R
EQ

U
IR

ED
1.

Bu
ild

ing
 la

nd
sc

ap
ing

 sh
all

 be
 in

co
rp

or
ate

d a
lon

g b
uil

din
g e

lev
ati

on
s, 

wh
ich

 ar
e 3

5' 
or

 gr
ea

ter
 in

 le
ng

th
2.

Bu
ild

ing
 la

nd
sc

ap
ing

 m
ay

 be
 ag

gr
eg

ate
d i

nto
 on

e o
r m

or
e l

oc
ati

on
s a

lon
g t

he
 el

ev
ati

on
s t

o a
llo

w 
for

 
pe

de
str

ian
/ve

hic
ula

r a
cc

es
s a

nd
 lo

ad
ing

 ar
ea

s a
lon

g t
he

 bu
ild

ing
 el

ev
ati

on
.

3.
Bu

ild
ing

 la
nd

sc
ap

e t
o h

av
e a

 m
in.

 de
pth

 of
 6'

 
4.

Bu
ild

ing
 la

nd
sc

ap
e t

o i
nc

lud
e 1

0 h
ed

ge
pla

nt 
or

 sh
ru

bs
 pe

r 5
0 L

F
Bu

ild
in g

 la
nd

sc
ap

e t
o i

nc
lud

e 1
 ca

no
py

 tr
ee

 pe
r 5

0 L
F 

or
 1 

un
de

rst
or

yp
er

 35
 LF

No
rth

: 1
23

 LF
/35

 = 
3 U

nd
er

sto
r y 

Tr
ee

s; 
12

3 L
F/

50
 = 

24
 S

hr
ub

s
So

uth
: 1

23
 LF

/35
 =

 3 
Un

de
rst

or
y T

re
es

; 1
23

 LF
/50

 =
 24

 S
hr

ub
s

Ea
st:

 40
 LF

/ 3
5 =

 1 
Un

de
rst

or
y T

re
e; 

40
 LF

/50
 = 

8 S
hr

ub
s

W
es

t: 4
0 L

F/
 35

 = 
1 U

nd
er

sto
ry 

Tr
ee

; 4
0 L

F/
50

 = 
8 S

hr
ub

s
To

ta
l: 

8 U
nd

er
st

or
y T

re
es

 an
d 

64
 S

hr
ub

s
PR

O
VI

D
ED

1.
Bu

ild
ing

 la
nd

sc
ap

ing
 in

co
rp

or
ate

d a
lon

g a
ll f

ou
r s

ide
s o

f th
e b

uil
din

g.
2.

Ma
jor

ity
 of

 th
e t

re
es

 ar
e l

oc
ate

d o
n t

he
 ea

st 
sid

e o
f th

e b
uil

din
g.

3.
Av

er
a g

ep
lan

tin
g a

re
as

 is
 6'

 w
ide

4.
Tr

ee
s

Sh
ru

bs
No

rth
: 

(0
) t

re
es

(1
7)

 14
 D

ist
yli

um
, 3

 B
ox

wo
od

So
uth

:
(1

) 1
 Ja

p. 
Ma

ple
(1

7)
 6 

An
ise

, 8
 B

ox
wo

od
, 3

 B
lue

 A
rro

w
Ea

st:
(9

) 3
 R

ed
bu

d, 
5 A

rb
or

vit
ae

,
(3

2)
 21

 D
ist

yli
um

, 1
1 R

os
e

W
es

t:
1 T

F 
Lig

us
tru

m
(3

2)
 12

 S
un

sh
ine

 Li
gu

str
um

, 6
 A

da
gio

 G
ra

ss
, 1

4 R
os

e

To
ta

l: 
9 U

nd
er

st
or

y T
re

es
98

 S
hr

ub
s

E.
B

U
FF

ER
S

R
EQ

U
IR

ED
1.

Cl
as

s "
B"

 bu
ffe

r s
ha

ll b
e p

ro
vid

ed
 al

on
g t

he
 N

or
th 

an
d S

ou
th 

pr
op

er
ty 

lin
es

, w
he

re
 ab

uts
 R

-4
 R

es
idn

eti
al 

15
' w

ide
 bu

ffe
r s

tri p
 if 

a f
en

ce
 or

 w
all

 is
 us

ed
, o

r 2
0' 

wi
de

 w
ith

 no
 fe

nc
e o

r w
all

. 
2.

10
 U

nd
er

sto
r y 

tre
es

 in
 a 

sin
gle

 ro
w 

pe
r 1

00
 LF

No
rth

: 1
01

 LF
/ 1

00
 =

 1.
01

 x 
10

 = 
10

 U
nd

er
sto

ry 
Tr

ee
s

So
uth

: 1
18

 LF
/ 1

00
 = 

1.1
8 x

 10
 = 

12
 U

nd
er

sto
ry 

Tr
ee

s
3.

20
 sh

ru
bs

 in
 a 

sin
gle

 ro
w 

pe
r 1

00
 LF

. S
hr

ub
s s

ha
ll b

e e
ve

rg
re

en
 an

d 3
0"

 hg
t m

in.
 at

 pl
an

tin
g

No
rth

: 1
01

 LF
/ 1

00
 =

 1.
01

 x 
20

 = 
20

 S
hr

ub
s

So
uth

: 1
18

 LF
/ 1

00
 = 

1.1
8 x

 20
 = 

24
 S

hr
ub

s
PR

O
VI

D
ED

1.
15

' w
ide

 bu
ffe

r p
ro

vid
ed

 w
ith

 6'
 fe

nc
e. 

2.
No

rth
: 6

 N
ell

ie 
R 

St
ev

en
s H

oll
y, 

4 A
rb

or
vit

ae
So

uth
: 8

 N
ell

ie 
R 

St
ev

en
s H

oll
y, 

4 A
rb

or
vit

ae
3.

No
rth

: 2
0 N

ee
dle

po
int

 H
oll

y, 
16

 A
nis

e (
36

 sh
ru

bs
)

So
uth

: 2
8 N

ee
dle

po
int

 H
oll

y(
28

 sh
ru

bs
)

S
H

E
E

T
 T

IT
L

E

S
T

O
R

E

S
he

et

: :: : :
C

he
ck

ed
 B

y

Jo
b 

N
o.

D
ra

w
n 

B
y

D
at

e
S

to
re

B
y

D
at

e
M

ar
k

B
y

D
at

e
M

ar
k

S
ea

l

R
ev

is
io

ns
:

D
at

e
M

ar
k

B
y

52
00

 B
uf

fi
ng

to
n 

R
d.

A
tl

an
ta

, G
eo

rg
ia

30
34

9-
29

98 20
18

21
6

39
48

1.
4.

19

C
ah

ab
a 

H
ei

gh
ts

IS
S

U
E

 D
A

T
E

: 
V

E
R

S
IO

N
:

L
an

ds
ca

pe
 P

la
n

L
-1

.0A
D

N

S
L

M

39
49

 C
ro

ss
ha

ve
n 

D
ri

ve
V

es
ta

vi
a 

H
il

ls
, A

L
 3

52
43

0
20

40
 F

T

PL
A

N
T 

LI
ST

Q
ty

B
ot

an
ic

al
 N

am
e

C
om

m
on

 N
am

e
Sc

he
du

le
d

 S
iz

e
R

em
ar

ks
Tr

ee
s

3
Ac

er
 ru

br
um

 'O
cto

be
r G

lor
y'

Oc
tob

er
 G

lor
y R

ed
 M

ap
le

Mi
n. 

3"
 C

al.
; 1

2' 
Hg

t.
B 

& 
B;

 S
ing

le 
St

ra
igh

t L
ea

de
r

6
Ce

rci
s c

an
ad

en
sis

Ea
ste

rn
 R

ed
bu

d
2"

 C
al.

B 
& 

B
14

Ile
x x

 'N
ell

ie 
R.

 S
tev

en
s'

Ne
llie

 S
tev

en
s H

oll
y

Mi
n. 

7' 
Hg

t.
B 

& 
B;

 F
ull

 to
 G

ro
un

d
11

La
ge

rst
ro

em
ia 

ind
ica

 'C
ata

wb
a'

Ca
taw

ba
 C

re
pe

 M
yrt

le
Mi

n. 
8' 

Hg
t.

B 
& 

B;
 M

ult
i-tr

un
ke

d
1

Lig
us

tru
m 

jap
on

icu
m 

'Tr
ee

 F
or

m'
Tr

ee
 F

or
m 

W
ax

lea
f L

igu
str

um
Mi

n. 
8' 

Hg
t.

B 
& 

B
4

Qu
er

cu
s p

he
llo

s
W

illo
w 

Oa
k

Mi
n. 

3"
 C

al.
; 1

2' 
Hg

t.
B 

& 
B;

 S
ing

le 
St

ra
igh

t L
ea

de
r

5
Th

uja
 oc

cid
en

tal
is 

'Te
ch

ny
'

Mi
ss

ion
 A

rb
or

vit
ae

Mi
n. 

7' 
Hg

t.
B 

& 
B

8
Th

uja
 x 

pli
ca

ta 
'G

re
en

 G
ian

t'
Gr

ee
n G

ian
t A

rb
or

vit
ae

Mi
n. 

7' 
Hg

t.
B 

& 
B

10
Ul

mu
s p

ar
vif

oli
a '

Bo
sq

ue
'

Bo
sq

ue
 E

lm
Mi

n. 
3"

 C
al.

; 1
2' 

Hg
t.

B 
& 

B;
 S

ing
le 

St
ra

igh
t L

ea
de

r

Sh
ru

bs
23

Bu
xu

s x
 'G

re
en

 M
ou

nta
in'

Gr
ee

n M
ou

nta
in 

Bo
xw

oo
d

3 G
al.

; M
in.

 12
" H

gt.
17

3
Di

sty
liu

m 
'Vi

nta
ge

 Ja
de

'
Vi

nta
ge

 Ja
de

 D
ist

yli
um

3 G
al.

; M
in.

 12
" H

gt.
19

Hy
dr

an
ge

a p
an

icu
lat

a '
Lim

eli
gh

t'
Lim

eli
gh

t H
yd

ra
ng

ea
3 G

al.
; M

in.
 18

" H
gt.

14
9

Ile
x c

or
nu

ta 
'N

ee
dle

po
int

'
Ne

ed
lep

oin
t H

oll
y

3 G
al.

; M
in.

 30
" H

gt.
70

Illi
cu

m 
an

isa
tum

Ja
pa

ne
se

 A
nis

e
3 G

al.
; M

in.
 18

" H
gt.

3
Ju

nip
er

us
 vi

rg
ini

an
a '

Bl
ue

 A
rro

w'
Bl

ue
 A

rro
w 

Ju
nip

er
5'-

6' 
Hg

t.
10

2
Lig

us
tru

m 
sin

en
se

 'S
un

sh
ine

'
Su

ns
hin

e L
igu

str
um

3 G
al.

; M
in.

 18
" H

gt.
65

Mi
sc

an
thu

s s
ine

ns
is 

'A
da

gio
'

Ad
ag

io 
Gr

as
s

3 G
al.

; M
in.

 18
" H

gt.
55

Ro
sa

 'M
eij

oc
os

'
Pi

nk
 D

rift
 R

os
e

3 G
al.

; M
in.

 12
" H

gt.
60

Sp
ira

ea
jap

on
ica

 'L
ittl

e '
Tr

ac
y'

Do
ub

le 
Pl

ay
 B

ig 
Ba

ng
 S

pir
ea

3 G
al.

; M
in.

 12
" H

gt.

G
ro

un
dc

ov
er

s
26

He
me

ro
ca

llis
 'S

tel
la 

De
 O

ro
'

St
ell

a D
e O

ro
 D

ay
lily

1 G
al.

66
0

Lir
iop

e m
us

ca
ri '

Bi
g B

lue
'

Bi
g B

lue
 Li

rio
pe

1 G
al.

Pl
an

t 1
8"

 O
.C

.
71

33
Cy

no
do

n d
ac

tyl
on

Hy
br

id 
Be

rm
ud

a G
ra

ss
SF

; S
od

17
8

Co
lor

 B
ed

An
nu

al 
Co

lor
 B

ed
SF

; P
re

p &
 P

lan
t

#
Ro

ck
 M

ulc
h

Ro
ck

 M
ulc

h
SF

.

9
7

7

13
4

3

6

18

S 
89

°0
4'0

8"
 E

90
.26

'

S 00°36'29"  E 82.37'

S 
89

°1
3'0

0"
 E

19
5.

08
'

S 
88

°5
5'1

8"
 E

10
1.

06
'

S 00°47'29"  E

82.35'

S 00°48'15"  E

82.31'

N 
89

°1
7'4

3"
 W

99
.53

'

N 00°42'43" W

82.81'
N 00°38'45" WN 00°37'46" W

82.53'

9.5
1'

23
.59

'

S 
89

°0
4'0

8"
 E

90
.26

'

S 00°36'29"  E 82.37'

S 
89

°1
3'0

0"
 E

19
5.

08
'

S 
88

°5
5'1

8"
 E

10
1.

06
'

S 00°47'29"  E

82.35'

S 00°48'15"  E

82.31'

N 
89

°1
7'4

3"
 W

99
.53

'

N 03°53'56" W

248.74'

N 00°42'43" W

82.81'
N 00°38'45" WN 00°37'46" W

82.53'

9.5
1'

23
.59

'

T
P

W M

WALL STREET

CA
HA

BA
 C

T

CROSSHAVEN DR

LP

LP

LP

LP

646

647

648
649

646

649

648

647

650

651

65
5

654

653

652

659

658

657

656

64
7

64
8

65
0

64
9

65
1

65
2

652

653

65
4

655

658

66
0

66
1

66
2

645

645

651

650

65
1

S 
89

°0
4'0

8"
 E

90
.26

'

S 00°36'29"  E 82.37'

S 
89

°1
3'0

0"
 E

19
5.

08
'

S 
88

°5
5'1

8"
 E

10
1.

06
'

S 00°47'29"  E

82.35'

S 00°48'15"  E

82.31'

N 
89

°1
7'4

3"
 W

99
.53

'
N 

89
°0

9'2
8"

 W
16

4.
78

'
N 

89
°2

0'4
9"

 W

10
8.

33
'

N 00°42'43" W

82.81'
N 00°38'45" W

82.73'
N 00°37'46" W

82.53'

9.5
1'

23
.59

'

W M
B F P

W M
B F P

FH

34
 W

34
 W

4%%34 W 4%%34 W

4%
%

34
 W

4%
%

34
 W

4%
%

34
 W

4%
%

34
 W

4%
%

34
 W

4%
%

34
 W

%
34

 W

2%
%

34
 W

2%
%

34
 W

2%
%

34
 W

2%
%

34
 W

2%
%

34
 W

2%
%

34
 W

2%
%

34
 W

2%%34 W2%%34 W

30"
x48

" CLE
AR

OH
P

OH
P

OH
P

W
M W
M

BF
P

BF
P

3/4
%

%
34

 W
3/4

%
%

34
 W

3/4
%

%
34

 W

34 W

10
5

10
0

21
0

21
5

30
5

40
0

50
5

50
0

W

60
0

60
5

61
0

PI
V

2

Ro
ck

 M
ulc

h

2-
Bo

sq
ue

 E
lm

3-
Ca

taw
ba

 C
re

pe
 M

yrt
le

5-
Ca

taw
ba

 C
re

pe
 M

yrt
le

3-
Oc

tob
er

 G
lor

y R
ed

 M
ap

le

4-
Gr

ee
n G

ian
t A

rb
or

vit
ae

4-
Gr

ee
n G

ian
t A

rb
or

vit
ae

80
’ R

ad
ius

80
’ R

ad
ius

80
’ R

ad
ius

80
’ R

ad
ius

60
’ R

ad
ius

21
-N

ee
dle

po
int

 H
oll

y

21
-N

ee
dle

po
int

 H
oll

y

14
-Ja

pa
ne

se
 A

nis
e

20
-Ja

pa
ne

se
 A

nis
e

19
-S

un
sh

ine
 Li

gu
str

um

16
-S

un
sh

ine
 Li

gu
str

um

28
-N

ee
dle

po
int

 H
oll

y

7-
Lim

eli
gh

t H
yd

ra
ng

ea

20
-N

ee
dle

po
int

 H
oll

y

1-
Ea

ste
rn

 R
ed

bu
d

2-
Ea

ste
rn

 R
ed

bu
d

3-
Bl

ue
 A

rro
w 

Ju
nip

er
6-

Ja
pa

ne
se

 A
nis

e

12
-S

un
sh

ine
 Li

gu
str

um

Co
lor

 B
ed

22
-N

ee
dle

po
int

 H
oll

y

84
-B

ig 
Bl

ue
 Li

rio
pe

84
-B

ig 
Bl

ue
 Li

rio
pe

1-
Tr

ee
 F

or
m 

W
ax

lea
f L

igu
str

um

2-
Ea

ste
rn

 R
ed

bu
d

1-
Ea

ste
rn

 R
ed

bu
d

58
-B

ig 
Bl

ue
 Li

rio
pe

44
-B

ig 
Bl

ue
 Li

rio
pe

26
-B

ig 
Bl

ue
 Li

rio
pe

59
-B

ig 
Bl

ue
 Li

rio
pe

15
-B

ig 
Bl

ue
 Li

rio
pe

98
-B

ig 
Bl

ue
 Li

rio
pe

52
-B

ig 
Bl

ue
 Li

rio
pe3-

Ca
taw

ba
 C

re
pe

 M
yrt

le
88

-B
ig 

Bl
ue

 Li
rio

pe

52
-B

ig 
Bl

ue
 Li

rio
pe

14
-P

ink
 D

rift
 R

os
e

20
-P

ink
 D

rift
 R

os
e

14
-D

ou
ble

 P
lay

 B
ig 

Ba
ng

 S
pir

ea

14
-S

un
sh

ine
 Li

gu
str

um

20
-V

int
ag

e J
ad

e D
ist

yli
um

11
-P

ink
 D

rift
 R

os
e

17
-D

ou
ble

 P
lay

 B
ig 

Ba
ng

 S
pir

ea

7-
Ad

ag
io 

Gr
as

s

14
-Ja

pa
ne

se
 A

nis
e

1-
Bo

sq
ue

 E
lm

2-
Bo

sq
ue

 E
lm

1-
Bo

sq
ue

 E
lm

2-
Bo

sq
ue

 E
lm

5-
Mi

ss
ion

 A
rb

or
vit

ae

6-
Ne

llie
 S

tev
en

s H
oll

y

2-
Bo

sq
ue

 E
lm

So
d

So
d

So
d

So
d

So
d

So
d

So
d

8-
Ne

llie
 S

tev
en

s H
oll

y

21
-V

int
ag

e J
ad

e D
ist

yli
um

So
d

28
-A

da
gio

 G
ra

ss

20
-D

ou
ble

 P
lay

 B
ig 

Ba
ng

 S
pir

ea

5-
Lim

eli
gh

t H
yd

ra
ng

ea
3-

Lim
eli

gh
t H

yd
ra

ng
ea

Mo
nu

me
nt 

Si
gn

Fla
g P

ole

28
-V

int
ag

e J
ad

e D
ist

yli
um

6’ 
W

oo
d F

en
ce

(S
ee

 de
tai

l s
he

et 
L-

1.1
)

6’ 
W

oo
d F

en
ce

(S
ee

 de
tai

l s
he

et 
L-

1.1
)

Co
lor

 B
ed

1-
W

illo
w 

Oa
k

10
-P

ink
 D

rift
 R

os
e

7-
Vi

nta
ge

 Ja
de

 D
ist

yli
um

9-
Vi

nta
ge

 Ja
de

 D
ist

yli
um

4-
Lim

eli
gh

t H
yd

ra
ng

ea

19
-S

un
sh

ine
 Li

gu
str

um

10
-A

da
gio

 G
ra

ss
14

-A
da

gio
 G

ra
ss

9-
Do

ub
le 

Pl
ay

 B
ig 

Ba
ng

 S
pir

ea

6-
Vi

nta
ge

 Ja
de

 D
ist

yli
um

BU
FF

ER
 T

YP
E 

"B
"

 15' BUFFER

 15' BUFFER

BU
FF

ER
 T

YP
E 

"B
"

22
-S

un
sh

ine
 Li

gu
str

um

15
-V

int
ag

e J
ad

e D
ist

yli
um

16
-Ja

pa
ne

se
 A

nis
e

16
-V

int
ag

e J
ad

e D
ist

yli
um

3-
W

illo
w 

Oa
k

26
-S

tel
la 

De
 O

ro
 D

ay
lily

8-
Gr

ee
n M

ou
nta

in 
Bo

xw
oo

d
6-

Ad
ag

io 
Gr

as
s

14
-V

int
ag

e J
ad

e D
ist

yli
um

15
-G

re
en

 M
ou

nta
in 

Bo
xw

oo
d

W
all

60
’ R

ad
ius

37
-N

ee
dle

po
int

 H
oll

y

6’ 
W

oo
d F

en
ce

(S
ee

 de
tai

l s
he

et 
L-

1.1
)

16
-V

int
ag

e J
ad

e D
ist

yli
um

So
d

21
-V

int
ag

e J
ad

e D
ist

yli
um

3.
Th

er
e s

ha
ll b

e a
 ca

no
py

 tr
ee

 w
ith

in 
80

' o
r a

n u
nd

er
sto

ry 
tre

e w
ith

in 
60

' o
f e

ve
ry

pa
rki

ng
 sp

ac
e.

PR
O

VI
D

ED
1.

63
82

 S
F 

of 
int

er
ior

 la
nd

sc
ap

e a
re

a 
2.

Int
er

ior
 la

nd
sc

ap
e a

re
as

 w
ith

 a 
tre

e h
av

e a
 m

in.
 w

idt
h o

f 7
' a

nd
 75

 S
F

3.
Ev

er
yp

ar
kin

g s
pa

ce
 is

 w
ith

in 
80

' o
f a

 ca
no

py
 tr

ee
 or

 60
' o

f a
n u

nd
er

sto
ry 

tre
e (

se
e t

re
e c

irc
les

)
D

.
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 L

A
N

D
SC

A
PI

N
G

R
EQ

U
IR

ED
1.

Bu
ild

ing
 la

nd
sc

ap
ing

 sh
all

 be
 in

co
rp

or
ate

d a
lon

g b
uil

din
g e

lev
ati

on
s, 

wh
ich

 ar
e 3

5' 
or

 gr
ea

ter
 in

 le
ng

th
2.

Bu
ild

ing
 la

nd
sc

ap
ing

 m
ay

 be
 ag

gr
eg

ate
d i

nto
 on

e o
r m

or
e l

oc
ati

on
s a

lon
g t

he
 el

ev
ati

on
s t

o a
llo

w 
for

 
pe

de
str

ian
/ve

hic
ula

r a
cc

es
s a

nd
 lo

ad
ing

 ar
ea

s a
lon

g t
he

 bu
ild

ing
 el

ev
ati

on
.

3.
Bu

ild
ing

 la
nd

sc
ap

e t
o h

av
e a

 m
in.

 de
pth

 of
 6'

 
4.

Bu
ild

ing
 la

nd
sc

ap
e t

o i
nc

lud
e 1

0 h
ed

ge
pla

nt 
or

 sh
ru

bs
 pe

r 5
0 L

F
Bu

ild
in g

 la
nd

sc
ap

e t
o i

nc
lud

e 1
 ca

no
py

 tr
ee

 pe
r 5

0 L
F 

or
 1 

un
de

rst
or

yp
er

 35
 LF

No
rth

: 1
23

 LF
/35

 = 
3 U

nd
er

sto
ry 

Tr
ee

s; 
12

3 L
F/

50
 = 

24
 S

hr
ub

s
So

uth
: 1

23
 LF

/35
 =

 3 
Un

de
rst

or
y T

re
es

; 1
23

 LF
/50

 =
 24

 S
hr

ub
s

Ea
st:

 40
 LF

/ 3
5 =

 1 
Un

de
rst

or
y T

re
e; 

40
 LF

/50
 = 

8 S
hr

ub
s

W
es

t: 4
0 L

F/
 35

 = 
1 U

nd
er

sto
ry 

Tr
ee

; 4
0 L

F/
50

 = 
8 S

hr
ub

s
To

ta
l: 

8 U
nd

er
st

or
y T

re
es

 an
d 

64
 S

hr
ub

s
PR

O
VI

D
ED

1.
Bu

ild
ing

 la
nd

sc
ap

ing
 in

co
rp

or
ate

d a
lon

g a
ll f

ou
r s

ide
s o

f th
e b

uil
din

g.
2.

Ma
jor

ity
 of

 th
e t

re
es

 ar
e l

oc
ate

d o
n t

he
 ea

st 
sid

e o
f th

e b
uil

din
g.

3.
Av

er
a g

ep
lan

tin
g a

re
as

 is
 6'

 w
ide

4.
Tr

ee
s

Sh
ru

bs
No

rth
: 

(0
) t

re
es

(1
7)

 14
 D

ist
yli

um
, 3

 B
ox

wo
od

So
uth

:
(1

) 1
 Ja

p. 
Ma

ple
(1

7)
 6 

An
ise

, 8
 B

ox
wo

od
, 3

 B
lue

 A
rro

w
Ea

st:
(9

) 3
 R

ed
bu

d, 
5 A

rb
or

vit
ae

,
(3

2)
 21

 D
ist

yli
um

, 1
1 R

os
e

W
es

t:
1 T

F 
Lig

us
tru

m
(3

2)
 12

 S
un

sh
ine

 Li
gu

str
um

, 6
 A

da
gio

 G
ra

ss
, 1

4 R
os

e

To
ta

l: 
9 U

nd
er

st
or

y T
re

es
98

 S
hr

ub
s

E.
B

U
FF

ER
S

R
EQ

U
IR

ED
1.

Cl
as

s "
B"

 bu
ffe

r s
ha

ll b
e p

ro
vid

ed
 al

on
g t

he
 N

or
th 

an
d S

ou
th 

pr
op

er
ty 

lin
es

, w
he

re
 ab

uts
 R

-4
 R

es
idn

eti
al 

15
' w

ide
 bu

ffe
r s

tri p
 if 

a f
en

ce
 or

 w
all

 is
 us

ed
, o

r 2
0' 

wi
de

 w
ith

 no
 fe

nc
e o

r w
all

. 
2.

10
 U

nd
er

sto
ry 

tre
es

 in
 a 

sin
gle

 ro
w 

pe
r 1

00
 LF

No
rth

: 1
01

 LF
/ 1

00
 =

 1.
01

 x 
10

 = 
10

 U
nd

er
sto

ry 
Tr

ee
s

So
uth

: 1
18

 LF
/ 1

00
 = 

1.1
8 x

 10
 = 

12
 U

nd
er

sto
ry 

Tr
ee

s
3.

20
 sh

ru
bs

 in
 a 

sin
gle

 ro
w 

pe
r 1

00
 LF

. S
hr

ub
s s

ha
ll b

e e
ve

rg
re

en
 an

d 3
0"

 hg
t m

in.
 at

 pl
an

tin
g

No
rth

: 1
01

 LF
/ 1

00
 =

 1.
01

 x 
20

 = 
20

 S
hr

ub
s

So
uth

: 1
18

 LF
/ 1

00
 = 

1.1
8 x

 20
 = 

24
 S

hr
ub

s
PR

O
VI

D
ED

1.
15

' w
ide

 bu
ffe

r p
ro

vid
ed

 w
ith

 6'
 fe

nc
e. 

2.
No

rth
: 6

 N
ell

ie 
R 

St
ev

en
s H

oll
y, 

4 A
rb

or
vit

ae
So

uth
: 8

 N
ell

ie 
R 

St
ev

en
s H

oll
y, 

4 A
rb

or
vit

ae
3.

No
rth

: 2
0 N

ee
dle

po
int

 H
oll

y, 
16

 A
nis

e (
36

 sh
ru

bs
)

So
uth

: 2
8 N

ee
dle

po
int

 H
oll

y(
28

 sh
ru

bs
)

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2826 



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2826 



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2826 



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2826 



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2826 



Ordinance Number 2827 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2827 
 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING CONDITIONAL USE APPROVAL 
FOR A HOME OCCUPATION  

 
 WHEREAS, on December 13, 2010, the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, adopted and approved Ordinance Number 2331, also known as the City 

of Vestavia Hills Zoning Code; and 

 WHEREAS, on February 19, 2001 the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills 

adopted and approved Ordinance Number 1864 to rezone 3,350 +/- acres from multiple 

Jefferson County and Vestavia Hills zoning classifications to Vestavia Hills P.U.D.; and 

 WHEREAS, Section 709.5.A.1.b of Ordinance Number 1838 classifies a “home 

occupation” permitted only as a “Conditional Use” and 

 WHEREAS, Macy Teresa Yates is the owner of the property located at 727 

Hampden Place Circle, currently zoned Vestavia Hills PUD PR-1 (planned unit 

development planned residential district) more particularly described as Lot 931, 

Hampden Place Resurvey #2; and 

 WHEREAS, Macy Teresa Yates has submitted application for Conditional Use 

Approval for a home occupation to be operated in her residence located at 727 Hampden 

Place Circle, Vestavia Hills, Alabama located in the Liberty Park P.U.D.; and 

 WHEREAS, Macy Teresa Yates has indicated in her application for Conditional 

Use Approval that she will operate an office for promotional  products and apparel out of 

her home pursuant to the specifications of a home occupation; and 

 WHEREAS, a copy of said application dated November 20, 2018 is marked as 

Exhibit A, attached and hereby incorporated into this Ordinance Number 2827. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Conditional Use Approval is hereby approved for Macy Teresa Yates for a 

home occupation as described in the above-referenced application for her 

residence located at 727 Hampden Place Circle, Vestavia Hills, Alabama 

located in Liberty Park P.U.D. subject to the provisions outlined in Article 9 

of the Vestavia Hills Zoning Code outlined as follows: 



Ordinance Number 2827 
Page 2 

 

a. “Home occupation is defined as any use customarily conducted entirely 

within a dwelling and carried on solely by the inhabitant thereof, and 

which use is clearly incidental, accessory, subordinate and secondary to 

the use of the dwelling for dwelling purposes, and does not change the 

character of the dwelling itself or any part of parcel of property in the 

neighborhood surrounding said dwelling; and 

b. Home occupations shall be conducted only in the main dwelling building 

on the lot.  No more than twenty-five percent (25%) of the said dwelling 

may be used for a home occupation; and 

c. There shall be no public display of goods and absolutely no commodities 

sold on the premises; and 

d. No sign may be attached to the dwelling or any part of the real estate 

advertising any home occupation; and 

e. No home occupation or profession shall be permitted if such occupation 

creates noise, odors, vibrations or traffic which interferes with the 

residential qualities of the neighborhood insofar as health, safety, morals, 

convenience and general welfare are concerned; and 

f. In order to be a permitted home occupation or profession, the use must be 

one which is habitually, customarily and commonly established as a 

reasonable incidental, accessory, subordinate and secondary use; and 

g. Operation of any and all other business of any nature in residential zones 

is expressly prohibited; and 

h. The activity carried on as home occupation shall be limited to the hours 

between 7:00 AM and 10:00 PM; and 

i. No home occupation shall be permitted that requires the operation or 

keeping on premises a commercial vehicle and no additional traffic shall 

be generated by said conditional use; and 

j. No persons other than members of the family residing on the premises 

shall be employed by the home occupation; and 



Ordinance Number 2827 
Page 3 

 

2. Conditional Use Approval is further conditioned upon and subject to all 

applicable private and restrictive covenants attached to the said property 

located in the Liberty Park P.U.D. 

3. A City of Vestavia Hills Business License shall be issued upon application 

and payment by Macy Teresa Yates working subject to the rules and 

regulations outlined in the Vestavia Hills Business License Code and shall be 

renewed each year that the home occupation is operated from the said 

property located in the Liberty Park P.U.D. 

4. At any time should Macy Teresa Yates vacate the premises located at 727 

Hampden Place Circle, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, discontinue or relocate this 

business, this Conditional Use Approval shall be nullified and said Ordinance 

Number 2827 shall be automatically repealed. 

5. This Ordinance Number 2827 shall become effective immediately upon 

adoption, approval and publishing/posting pursuant to Alabama law. 

 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 25th day of 

February, 2019. 

 

 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2827 
Page 4 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2827 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 25th day of February, 2019 as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Library in the Forest, Vestavia 
Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2019. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 



CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     JANUARY 10, 2019 
 

• CASE:  P-0417-15 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION:   Conditional Use Approval for a home based business  
 

•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  727 Hampden Place Circle 
 

• APPLICANT/OWNER:  Mary Teresa Yates 
 

• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  The applicant wishes to conduct a home based business 
in Liberty Park. As required by the Liberty Park PUD a conditional use permit is 
required for a home based business. A description of the applicants business, as well 
as an approval letter from Liberty Park is attached. The property is zoned PR-1. 

 
• LIBERTY PARK MASTER PLAN:  This request is consistent with the procedures 

of the Liberty Park PUD. 
 

• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  I recommend the Commission recommend 
approval with the following conditions:  
1. Home occupations shall be conducted only in the principal dwelling. No 
more than twenty-five (25) percent, up to 500 sq. ft., of the dwelling may be 
used for a home occupation. 
2. There shall be no outdoor display or storage associated with the home 
occupation and no commodities shall be sold on the premises other than by 
phone, mail or internet. No goods shall be delivered to a purchaser on the 
premises. 
3. No sign may be attached to the dwelling or any part of the real estate 
advertising any home occupation. 
4. No home occupation shall be permitted if it creates noise, odors, vibrations 
or traffic congestion, which interferes with the residential qualities of the 
neighborhood insofar as health, safety, morals, convenience and general 
welfare are concerned. 

Ordinance No.. 2827



5. In order to be a permitted home occupation, the use must be one which is 
habitually, customarily, and commonly established as a reasonable incidental, 
accessory, subordinate and secondary use. The existing dwelling shall not be 
enlarged to accommodate the home occupation; nor shall any accessory 
structure be built for the purpose of operating the home occupation. 
6. No home occupation shall be permitted that requires the operation or 
keeping on premises of a commercial vehicle. 
7. No persons other than members of the family residing on the premises shall 
be employed by the home occupation. 
8. Home occupations shall be limited to the hours between 7:00 a.m. and 
10:00 p.m. 
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request 
 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

 

MOTION  Mr. Gilchrist made a motion to recommend Conditional Use Approval for a home 
occupation for 727 Hampden Place Circle with the following conditions: 

1. Home occupations shall be conducted only in the principal dwelling. No 
more than twenty-five (25) percent, up to 500 sq. ft., of the dwelling may be 
used for a home occupation. 
2. There shall be no outdoor display or storage associated with the home 
occupation and no commodities shall be sold on the premises other than by 
phone, mail or internet. No goods shall be delivered to a purchaser on the 
premises. 
3. No sign may be attached to the dwelling or any part of the real estate 
advertising any home occupation. 
4. No home occupation shall be permitted if it creates noise, odors, vibrations 
or traffic congestion, which interferes with the residential qualities of the 
neighborhood insofar as health, safety, morals, convenience and general 
welfare are concerned. 
5. In order to be a permitted home occupation, the use must be one which is 
habitually, customarily, and commonly established as a reasonable incidental, 
accessory, subordinate and secondary use. The existing dwelling shall not be 
enlarged to accommodate the home occupation; nor shall any accessory 
structure be built for the purpose of operating the home occupation. 
6. No home occupation shall be permitted that requires the operation or 
keeping on premises of a commercial vehicle. 
7. No persons other than members of the family residing on the premises shall 
be employed by the home occupation. 

Ordinance No.. 2827



8. Home occupations shall be limited to the hours between 7:00 a.m. and 
10:00 p.m. 

 
Second was by Mr. Weaver. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 
 
Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Gilchrist – yes           
Mr. Romeo – yes    Mr. Larson – yes 
Mr. Weaver– yes   Mr. House – yes     
Mrs. Barnes – yes 
Motion carried. 
 

 
 

Ordinance No.. 2827



Ordinance No.. 2827



Ordinance No.. 2827



Ordinance No.. 2827



Ordinance No.. 2827



Ordinance No.. 2827



Ordinance No.. 2827



Ordinance Number 2829 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2829 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER A MEMORANDUM OF 
UNDERSTANDING WITH THE VESTAVIA HILLS BOARD OF 
EDUCATION 

 
 WHEREAS, the Vestavia Hills City School System (“School System”) is a foundational 

element of the success of the City of Vestavia Hills (“City”) as evidenced by the reliable statistic 

that nearly 75% of city residents move to Vestavia Hills due to the school system and 

WHEREAS, the financial sustainability of the School System is directly correlated with 

the long term economic success of the City thus requiring interorganizational collaboration in areas 

such as finance, operations and recreation/athletics; and 

WHEREAS, the School System and City are both currently engaging in an unprecedented 

building program to improve the quality and capacity of its assets; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council agree that it is in the best public interest that an 

explicit memorandum of understanding (“MOU”) is warranted for clear expression of the desires 

of both entities along with a tool for planning and communication that can be utilized by each as 

well. As such, the following narrative is a comprehensive list of items that will support the 

collaboration mentioned above this MOU is designed for a collaboration of these efforts through 

both the City and the School System through a Memorandum of Understanding, a copy of which 

is marked as Exhibit A, attached to and incorporated into this Ordinance Number 2829 as if written 

fully therein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Mayor and City Manager are authorized to execute and deliver this MOU to the 

Vestavia Hills Board of Education;  

2. The Mayor and City Council acknowledge that the approval, authorization and the 

execution by the Vestavia Hills Board of Education and the Vestavia Hills Superintendent 

of Education must be obtained before this MOU is effective; and 

3. This Ordinance Number 2829 is effective immediately upon adoption and 

posting/publishing as required by Alabama law. 

 



Ordinance Number 2829 
Page 2 

 

 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 25th day of February, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



 

 

Memorandum Of Understanding For Shared Facility Use, Land Planning 

And Funding Between The City of Vestavia Hills And The Vestavia Hills City Schools 

February 4, 2019 

 

Whereas, Vestavia Hills City School System ( “school system”) is a foundational element of the success of 

the City of Vestavia Hills (“City”) as evidenced by the reliable statistic that nearly 75% of city residents 

move to Vestavia Hills due to the school system and 

Whereas, the financial sustainability of the school system is directly correlated with the long term 

economic success of the City thus requiring inter organizational collaboration in areas such as finance, 

operations and recreation/athletics and 

Whereas, the school system and City are both currently engaging in an unprecedented building program 

to improve the quality and capacity of its assets 

Now therefore, the City and school system agree that an explicit memorandum of understanding 

(“MOU”) is warranted for clear expression of the desires of both entities along with a tool for planning 

and communication that can be utilized be each as well. As such, the following narrative is a 

comprehensive list of items that will support the collaboration mentioned above. This MOU is designed 

as a letter of intent for both parties, and it is recognized that many of the items listed will require formal 

approval of the school system and the City before they can be considered finally approved. 

 

 The school system has an unanticipated financial need associated with components of its 

building program that include traffic/parking infrastructure, site improvements and roofing 

requirements. The additional costs will require an additional $9mm added to the school system 

program to be financed over 10 years. The City agrees to utilize surplus Community Space funds 

to cover 25% of the cost of debt service on this additional need. The anticipated annual City 

support will be $280,000 per year for ten years. 

 The school system agrees to construct two new ball fields on its new Pizitz campus as illustrated 

on exhibit A. Construction is scheduled to commence on 10/1/19. These ballfields will be 

available to the City as recreational fields consistent with a mutually acceptable field/facility 

agreement policy attached as exhibit B. 

 The City shall collaborate and agree to construct mutually acceptable pedestrian crossings 

between the new Wald Park and West Elementary School (VHEW) for safety purposes. 

 The City and school system agree that the current property lines at the Cahaba Heights 

Elementary School (VHECH) adjacent to the City’s recreation facilities do not represent the 

current space needs for each entity. As such, the school system and the City agree to resurvey 

and plat new property lines similar to exhibit C to this document. 

 Given the facility needs of both entities a mutual conveyance of assets will occur as follows: 

o The school system will convey excess property at Cahaba Heights in return for the City’s 

conveyance of excess property at Wald Park as illustrated in exhibit D to this document. 

The City shall only use the conveyed Cahaba Heights property for recreational purposes 



 

 

and the school system shall only use the conveyed Wald Park property for educational 

purposes. 

o The City shall demolish the current New Merkel facility and convey the site of such 

demolished structure to the school system when a new facility is constructed adjacent 

to the City’s athletic fields. 

o Upon conveyance of the excess property at Wald Park, the current gymnasium can be 

utilized by the City consistent exhibit B as long as it is still in operations by the school 

system for athletic purposes. 

 The City and school system agree to utilize a master scheduling system for its recreational and 

athletic facilities consistent with exhibit B 

 The City and school system agree to develop a formal shared parking agreement for all adjacent 

real estate/ facilities 

 

 

This MOU is agreed to serve as a letter of intent by both parties as evidenced by the signature of the 

following  

 

 

 

 

Superintendent of Vestavia City Schools 

 

 

 

Vestavia Hills Board of Education, Chair 

 

 

 

Vestavia Hills City Manager   

 

 

 

Vestavia Hills Mayor 



MOU Exhibit A



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Intergovernmental Facility and Public Space Use Agreement 
Vestavia Hills City Schools 
City of Vestavia 
November 19, 2018 
 
Vestavia Hills City Schools Facility Sites 
 

VHHS 9th Grade Pizitz LPMS Central Elementaries 

Competition Gym Competition Gym Grass Field Competition Gym Grass Field Gym Spaces 

Practice Gym Practice Gym Competition Gym Weight Room Gym Dolly Ridge 
(Baseball Field) 

Turf Field Grass Field Auxiliary Gym Grass Field  Dolly Ridge (soccer 
Field) 

Track Weight Room Track    

Grass Field Activity Courts Proposed Baseball    

Baseball Turf Field  Proposed Softball    

Softball Field (off 
campus) 

 Weight Room    

Wrestling Room  Wrestling Room    

Cheer Room      

Weight Room (2)      

Tennis Courts      

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MOU Exhibit B



Vestavia Hills Park and Recreation Facility Sites 
 

Wald Park McCallum Cahaba Heights Liberty Park SHAC Community 
Building 

Tennis Courts Picnic Pavilion Baseball Fields (4) Baseball/Softball 
Diamonds (9) 

Full Size - 
multipurpose turf 
rectangles (4) 

Basketball Courts 
(3) 

Swimming Pool Walking Trails Playground (2) Soccer Fields (5) Smaller - 
multipurpose turf 
rectangle (1) 

Multipurpose 
Activity Space 

Baseball Fields (3) Bike Trails Picnic Pavilion Playgrounds (2) 1 mile of walking 
trails 

Indoor Walking 
Track 

Miracle League 
Field 

Open Green 
Space 

New Merkel House Walking Tracks - 
baseball fields 

Playgrounds (2) VH Hall of Fame 

Recreation Center  Dog Park Meeting Space Picnic Pavilion Meeting Space 

Rental Lodge    Splash Pad Banquet Space 

Walking 
Track/Trails 

   Meeting Space  

Playgrounds      

Dog Park      

Meeting Space      

 
Athletic Facility Usage Agreement: 
 

1. The Vestavia Hills Park and Recreation Board and the Vestavia Hills Board of Education 
have a reciprocal agreement with regards to facility usage. 
§ All Park and Recreation requests for VHCS athletic facilities should be made by the 

Park and Recreation Superintendent to the Vestavia Hills Athletic Director. 
§  All Board of Education requests for Park and Recreation athletic facilities should be 

made by the VHCS Athletic Director to the Park and Recreation Superintendent. 
§ Each entity agrees that there must be an employee of either the Park and Recreation 

Board and/or VHCS at all indoor sanctioned events and must be present during the 
entirety of the event.  For outdoor events, there will be a designated point person 
with ultimate responsibility for the facility in use agreed to by each entity. 

§ The Park and Recreation Superintendent will coordinate directly with the individual 
school representatives with regard to scheduling recreation basketball at the VHCS 
sites.  

 
2. The owner of the property has first priority with regards to scheduling. 

§ In general, requests should only be made when there are no additional options 
available to either entity. 

 

MOU Exhibit B



3. General maintenance of any facilities is the responsibility of the owner. 
 

4. Any issues beyond general wear and tear of facilities is the responsibility of the group 
who caused the issues. 
§ All issues that arise should be addressed immediately between the Park and 

Recreation Superintendent and VHCS Athletic Director 
§ Each entity reserves the right through this agreement to terminate an individual 

group or groups right to use a facility 
 

5. It will be the responsibility of each entity to coordinate and facilitate an up to date 
Emergency Action Plan, as well as provide proper equipment (i.e. AED, etc.) for the 
facility used. 
 

6. Maintenance on shared properties such as the high school tennis courts will be 
completed with a 50/50 split of costs. 
§ All expenses anticipated and incurred must be discussed between each entity prior 

to the authorization and approval of maintenance. 
 
Additional Considerations: 
 

1. All efforts will be made by the VHBOE and VH City Council to created specs and jointly 
bid for lawn maintenance for athletic fields and other shared public spaces. 

 
 

MOU Exhibit B



V
E

S
T

A
V

IA
 H

IL
LS

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 S
P

A
C

E
S

C
A

H
A

B
A

 H
E

IG
H

T
S

 
S

IT
E

 P
LA

N
 E

X
H

IB
IT

 

CI
TY

 P
RO

PE
RT

Y
B.

O.
E.

 P
RO

PE
RT

Y

B.
O.

E.
 P

RO
PE

RT
Y

CI
TY

 P
RO

PE
RT

Y

DO
LL

Y 
RI

DG
E

DE
VE

LO
PE

R
PR

OP
ER

TY

HE
IG

HT
S

DE
RM

AT
OL

OG
Y

PU
BL

IC
 A

CC
ES

S 
RO

AD

SH
AR

ED
 U

SE
EA

SE
ME

NT SH
AR

ED
 U

SE
EA

SE
ME

NT

MOU - Exhibit C 



Ordinance Number 2830 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2830 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER AN ACCESS AND PARKING 
AGREEMENT WITH HCI VESTAVIA I, LLC, AN ALABAMA LIMITED 
LIABILITY COMPANY (“HCI”) 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Mayor and City Manager are authorized to execute and deliver an Access and Parking 

Agreement with HCI Vestavia I, LLC, an Alabama limited liability company for parking 

at Wald Park; and 

2. A copy of said Access and Parking Agreement is marked as Exhibit A and is attached to 

and incorporated into this Ordinance Number 2830 as though written fully therein; and  

3. This Ordinance Number 2830 is effective immediately upon adoption and 

posting/publishing as required by Alabama law. 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 25th day of February, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2830



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2830



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2830



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2830



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2830



Ordinance No. 2830 - Exhibit A 
Page 1



CITY OF VESTAVIA PARCEL 
 
 
COMMENCE AT NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF THE 
NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 31, TOWNSHIP 18 SOUTH , RANGE 2 WEST  
JEFERSON COUNTY  ALABAMA; THENCE RUN SOUTH 87 DEGREES 23 MINUTES 
27 SECONDS EAST ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID QUARTER-QUARTER 
SECTION FOR 16.20 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EASTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE 
OF WALD RIDGE ROAD, AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF THE TRACT OF 
LAND HEREIN DESCRIBED; THENCE RUN ALONG THE RSADI RIGHT OF WAY 
LINE THE FOLLOWING COURSES:SOUTH 37 DEGREES 29 MINUTES 43 
SECONDS WEST FOR 552.47 FEET;TO A CURVE TO THE  LEFT, HAVING A 
RADIUS OF 137.70 FEET,  A CHORD BEARING OF SOUTH 09 DEGREES 49 
MINUTES 53 SECONDS WEST, AND A CHORD LENGTH OF 127.86 FEET;  THENCE 
RUN ALONG SAID ARC FOR 132.97 FEET ; TO A COMPOUND CURVE TO THE  
LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1254.43 FEET,  A CHORD BEARING OF SOUTH 24 
DEGREES 03 MINUTES 41 SECONDS EAST, AND A CHORD LENGTH OF 272.22 
FEET;  THENCE RUN ALONG SAID ARC FOR 272.76 FEET ;THENCE RUN SOUTH 
30 DEGREES 17 MINUTES 26 SECONDS EAST FOR 22.18 FEET; TO A CURVE TO 
THE  LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 375.00 FEET,  A CHORD BEARING OF SOUTH 
46 DEGREES 21 MINUTES 12 SECONDS EAST, AND A CHORD LENGTH OF 207.52 
FEET;  THENCE RUN ALONG SAID ARC FOR 210.26 FEET ;THENCE RUN SOUTH 
62 DEGREES 24 MINUTES 57 SECONDS EAST FOR 23.13 FEET; TO A CURVE TO 
THE  LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1482.65 FEET,  A CHORD BEARING OF SOUTH 
65 DEGREES 04 MINUTES 27 SECONDS EAST, AND A CHORD LENGTH OF 137.53 
FEET;  THENCE RUN ALONG SAID ARC FOR 137.58 FEET ; THENCE RUN SOUTH 
65 DEGREES 35 MINUTES 20 SECONDS EAST FOR 130.97 FEET TO THE 
WESTERLY MOST CORNER OF LOT B , ACCORDING TO WALD PARK SURVET 
NO 1 AS RECORDED IN MAP 249 PAGE 28 IN THE JEFFERSON COUNTY 
PROBATE OFFICE;  THENCE RUN ALONG THE BOUNDARY OF SAID LOT B AND 
OF LOT A OF SAID PLAT THE FOLLOWING COURSES NORTH 22 DEGREES 16 
MINUTES 03 SECONDS EAST FOR 45.64 FEET; NORTH 37 DEGREES 28 MINUTES 
32 SECONDS EAST FOR 128.63 FEET; NORTH 37 DEGREES 28 MINUTES 32 
SECONDS EAST FOR 252.87 FEET;NORTH 82 DEGREES 28 MINUTES 32 
SECONDS EAST FOR 72.83 FEET;  SOUTH 52 DEGREES 31 MINUTES 28 
SECONDS EAST FOR 167.23 FEET;  TO A POINT ON THE WESTERLY RIGHT OF 
WAY LINE OF U.S. HIGHWAY 31 AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF  A NON 
TANGENT CURVE TO THE  LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 3154.18 FEET,  A CHORD 
BEARING OF NORTH 22 DEGREES 04 MINUTES 30 SECONDS EAST, AND A 
CHORD LENGTH OF 199.99 FEET;  THENCE RUN ALONG SAID ARC AND RIGHT 
OF WAY LINE FOR 200.02 FEET ; TO A COMPOUND CURVE TO THE  LEFT, 
HAVING A RADIUS OF 3154.18 FEET,  A CHORD BEARING OF NORTH 14 
DEGREES 58 MINUTES 05 SECONDS EAST, AND A CHORD LENGTH OF 581.64 
FEET;  THENCE RUN ALONG SAID ARC AND RIGHT OF WAY LINE FOR 582.47 
FEET ; TO A COMPOUND CURVE TO THE  LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 2172.01 
FEET,  A CHORD BEARING OF NORTH 08 DEGREES 53 MINUTES 48 SECONDS 

Ordinance No. 2830 - Exhibit A 
Page 2



EAST, AND A CHORD LENGTH OF 59.22 FEET;  THENCE RUN ALONG SAID ARC 
AND RIGHT OF WAY LINE FOR 59.22 FEET ; THENCE RUN NORTH 87 DEGREES 
23 MINUTES 27 SECONDS WEST FOR 884.68 FEET TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING.  SAID TRACT OF LAND CONTAINING 906413.16S.F. OR 20.81ACRES 
MORE OR LESS. 
 

Ordinance No. 2830 - Exhibit A 
Page 3



 

 

EXHIBIT “B” 

HCI Property 

 

Lot A, according to the Survey of Wald Park Survey No. 1, as recorded in Map Book 249, page 
28, in the Probate Office of Jefferson County, Alabama. 

TOGETHER WITH all rights in and to that certain Declaration and Grant of Reciprocal Access, 
Maintenance, and Common Use Easement Agreement dated 1/31/2019 by and between HCI 
Vestavia I, LLC, an Alabama limited liability company and HCI Vestavia II, LLC, an Alabama 
limited liability company, recorded in Instrument # 2019009119, in the Probate Office of Jefferson 
County, Alabama. 

Ordinance No. 2830 - Exhibit B



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2830



N

OVERALL

C1.0

NOT TO SCALE

2204 FIRST AVENUE SOUTH, SUITE 200
BIRMINGHAM, ALABAMA 35233

WILLIAMS
BLACKSTOCK
ARCHITECTS

19
73

 M
er

ry
va

le
 R

d,
 V

es
ta

vi
a 

H
ill

s,
 A

L 
35

21
6

18
-0

35
.0

0

18-035.00

DECEMBER 14, 2018

T
H

E 
C

IT
Y

 O
F 

V
ES

T
A

V
IA

 H
IL

LS

Exhibit C - Parking Area

Shared
Parking Area

Ordinance No. 2830 - Exhibit C



RESOLUTION NUMBER 5128 
 

A RESOLUTION RESCHEDULING REGULAR MEETINGS AND/OR 
WORK SESSIONS OF THE VESTAVIA HILLS CITY COUNCIL 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA 

HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The regularly scheduled meeting of the Vestavia Hills City Council scheduled for May 27 

2019 is hereby rescheduled for Monday, May 20, 2019 beginning at 6 PM on observance 

of Memorial Day; and 

2. The regularly scheduled work session of the Vestavia Hills City Council scheduled for 

May 20, 2019 at 6 PM is hereby rescheduled for Monday, May 20, 2019 beginning at 5 

PM; and 

3. This Resolution Number 5128 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 25th day of February, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Resolution Number 5129 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5129 
 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A BID FOR MUNICIPAL WRECKER 
SERVICES FOR THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 

 
 WHEREAS, on February 7, 2019 at 10:00 a.m. the City of Vestavia Hills publicly read 

aloud bids submitted for Municipal Wrecker Services for the Vestavia Hills; and 

 WHEREAS, two bids were submitted; and  

WHEREAS, the Police Chief has reviewed the bids, detailed them in an Interoffice 

Memorandum dated February 13, 2019 and recommended acceptance of the bid submitted by 

Vestavia Tire Express; a  copy of said Interoffice Memorandum is marked as Exhibit A attached 

to and incorporated into this Resolution Number 5129 as if written fully therein; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best public interest to follow the 

recommendation of the Police Chief and accept said bid as detailed above. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The bid submitted by Vestavia Tire Express as detailed in Exhibit A is attached and 

recommended by the Police Chief is hereby accepted; and 

2. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized to execute and deliver any and all 

documents necessary to secure said agreement and/or for said services; and 

3. This Resolution Number 5129 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 25th day of February, 2019. 

 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor  
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



VESTAVIA HILLS POLICE DEPARTMENT    
 
 

To: Mr. Downes    MEMO 
  
From: Chief Dan Rary 
 
CC: Becky Leavings 
 
Date:  13 Feb 19 
 
Re: Request for Council agenda 
 
 
Mr. Downes, 
 
I am requesting that the following item be placed on the City Councils agenda for 25 Feb 19 for 
first read. 
 
I am recommend that we accept the low bid for the Police Department wrecker contract.  The 
low bid was from Vestavia Tire Express. 
 
Service     Vestavia Tire Express     Weil Wrecker 
   [Citizens] 
Small vehicle (10k or less) 
Tow for accident    $275.00    $300.00 
   Out of City mileage add        3.50          4.50 
   No key with vehicle        50.00        75.00 
   Dolly         N/C         65.00 
   Use tires         N/C         25.00 per 
Administrative Fee        75.00        75.00 
  Sent to state by law 
Storage Fee         35.00        35.00 
Large Vehicle over 10k have increased pricing but are the same from both bidders. 
 
City Owned Vehicles    Vestavia Tire Express Weil Wrecker 
Small vehicle (10k or less) 
Tow for accident     $55.00      $65.00 
   Out of City mileage add        3.50          4.50 
   No key with vehicle       50.00        75.00 
   Dolly         N/C         65.00 
   Install snow chains        35.00         45.00 
   Flat          50.00        50.00 
   Mechanical fix on scene       85.00 hr    Tow only 
 
OTHER ITEMS ON BID SHEETS     

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5129



RESOLUTION NUMBER 5130 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO PURCHASE 
AND EQUIP TWO (2) POLICE DEPARTMENT VEHICLES AT A COST 
NOT TO EXCEED $60,000 AND TO EXPENSE SAID PURCHASE TO THE 
CONFISCATIONS ACCOUNT 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to purchase and equip two (2) police department 

vehicles at a cost not to exceed $60,000; and 

2. The expense of said vehicles will be funded through the City’s Confiscation Account; and 

3. This Resolution Number 5130 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 25th day of February, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



VESTAVIA HILLS POLICE DEPARTMENT    
 
 

To: Mr. Downes    MEMO 
  
From: Deputy Chief Jason Hardin 
 
CC: Becky Leavings 
 
Date:  20 FEB 2019 
 
Re: Request for Council agenda 
 
 
Mr. Downes, 
 
I am requesting that the following item be placed on the City Councils agenda for 25 FEB 2019 
for unanimous consent. 
 
I am requesting that we purchase two police vehicles out of the police confiscation account not to 
exceed $60,000. 
 
 

Exhibit - Resolution No. 5130



Resolution Number 5131 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 5131 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 

TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated November 19, 2018, wherein all owners of certain property 

contiguous to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property 

be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 11th day of March, 2019; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing it within 

the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham News, 

a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, on the 

15th day of March, 2019. 

 2.  That on the 24th day of June, 2019, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a public 

hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition and to 

consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such hearing, 

to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance annexing the 

territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution Number 

5131 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as annexation of the 

following described property by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 



Resolution Number 5131 
Page 2 

 
2424 Magnolia Cove 

Lot 7, Magnolia Cove Estates 
Chase Beard, Owner(s) 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 11th day of March, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



2424 Magnolia Cove Lot 7



 

2424 Magnolia Cove Lot 7



2424 Magnolia Cove Lot 7



2424 Magnolia Cove Lot 7



2424 Magnolia Cove Lot 7



2424 Magnolia Cove Lot 7



Resolution Number 5132 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 5132 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 

TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated November 19, 2018, wherein all owners of certain property 

contiguous to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property 

be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 11th day of March, 2019; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing it within 

the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham News, 

a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, on the 

15th day of March, 2019. 

 2.  That on the 24th day of June, 2019, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a public 

hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition and to 

consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such hearing, 

to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance annexing the 

territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution Number 

5132 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as annexation of the 

following described property by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 



Resolution Number 5132 
Page 2 

 
2423 Magnolia Cove 

Lot 8, Magnolia Cove Estates 
Chase Beard, Owner(s) 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 11th day of March, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



2423 Magnolia Cove Lot 8



 

2423 Magnolia Cove Lot 8



2423 Magnolia Cove Lot 8



2423 Magnolia Cove Lot 8



2423 Magnolia Cove Lot 8



2423 Magnolia Cove Lot 8



Resolution Number 5133 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 5133 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 

TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated November 12, 2018, wherein all owners of certain property 

contiguous to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property 

be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 11th day of March, 2019; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing it within 

the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham News, 

a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, on the 

15th day of March. 

 2.  That on the 24th day of June, 2019, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a public 

hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition and to 

consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such hearing, 

to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance annexing the 

territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution Number 

5133 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as annexation of the 

following described property by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 



Resolution Number 5133 
Page 2 

 
2419 Magnolia Cove 

Lot 9, Magnolia Cove Estates 
Martin Steven Cogen, Owner(s) 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 11th day of March, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



2419 Magnolia Cove Lot 9



 

2419 Magnolia Cove Lot 9



2419 Magnolia Cove Lot 9



2419 Magnolia Cove Lot 9



2419 Magnolia Cove Lot 9



2419 Magnolia Cove Lot 9



2419 Magnolia Cove Lot 9



Resolution Number 5134 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 5134 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 

TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated November 13, 2018, wherein all owners of certain property 

contiguous to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property 

be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 11th day of March, 2019; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing it within 

the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham News, 

a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, on the 

15th day of March, 2019. 

 2.  That on the 24th day of June, 2019, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a public 

hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition and to 

consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such hearing, 

to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance annexing the 

territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution Number 

5134 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as annexation of the 

following described property by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 



Resolution Number 5134 
Page 2 

 
2415 Magnolia Cove 

Lot 10, Magnolia Cove Estates 
John and Lynda Gay, Owner(s) 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 11th day of March, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



2415 Magnolia Cove Lot 10



 

2415 Magnolia Cove Lot 10



2415 Magnolia Cove Lot 10



2415 Magnolia Cove Lot 10



2415 Magnolia Cove Lot 10



2415 Magnolia Cove Lot 10



Resolution Number 5135 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 5135 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 

TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated November 19, 2018, wherein all owners of certain property 

contiguous to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property 

be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 11th day of March, 2019; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing it within 

the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham News, 

a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, on the 

15th day of March, 2019. 

 2.  That on the 24th day of June, 2019, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a public 

hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition and to 

consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such hearing, 

to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance annexing the 

territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution Number 

5135 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as annexation of the 

following described property by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 



Resolution Number 5135 
Page 2 

 
2409 Magnolia Cove 

Lot 11, Magnolia Cove Estates 
David and Tammy Downard, Owner(s) 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 11th day of March, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 





 

2409 Magnolia Cove Lot 11



2409 Magnolia Cove Lot 11



2409 Magnolia Cove Lot 11



2409 Magnolia Cove Lot 11



2409 Magnolia Cove Lot 11



Resolution Number 5136 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 5136 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 

TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated November 16, 2018, wherein all owners of certain property 

contiguous to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property 

be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 11th day of March, 2019; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing it within 

the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham News, 

a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, on the 

15th day of March, 2019. 

 2.  That on the 24th day of June, 2019, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a public 

hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition and to 

consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such hearing, 

to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance annexing the 

territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution Number 

5136 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as annexation of the 

following described property by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 



Resolution Number 5136 
Page 2 

 
2405 Magnolia Cove 

Lot 12, Magnolia Cove Estates 
Thomas and Jane Walker, Owner(s) 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 11th day of March, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



2405 Magnolia Cove Lot 12



 

2405 Magnolia Cove Lot 12



2405 Magnolia Cove Lot 12



2405 Magnolia Cove Lot 12



2405 Magnolia Cove Lot 12



2405 Magnolia Cove Lot 12



Resolution Number 5137 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 5137 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 

TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated November 19, 2018, wherein all owners of certain property 

contiguous to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property 

be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 11th day of March, 2019; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing it within 

the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham News, 

a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, on the 

15th day of March, 2019. 

 2.  That on the 24th day of June, 2019, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a public 

hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition and to 

consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such hearing, 

to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance annexing the 

territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution Number 

5137 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as annexation of the 

following described property by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 



Resolution Number 5137 
Page 2 

 
2401 Magnolia Cove 

Lot 13, Magnolia Cove Estates 
Chase Beard, Owner(s) 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 11th day of March, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



2401 Magnolia Cove Lot 13



 

2401 Magnolia Cove Lot 13



2401 Magnolia Cove Lot 13



2401 Magnolia Cove Lot 13



2401 Magnolia Cove Lot 13



2401 Magnolia Cove Lot 13



Resolution Number 5138 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 5138 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 

TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated November 19, 2018, wherein all owners of certain property 

contiguous to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property 

be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 11th day of March, 2019; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing it within 

the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham News, 

a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, on the 

15th day of March, 2019. 

 2.  That on the 24th day of June, 2019, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a public 

hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition and to 

consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such hearing, 

to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance annexing the 

territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution Number 

5138 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as annexation of the 

following described property by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 



Resolution Number 5138 
Page 2 

 
2400 Magnolia Cove 

Lot 1, Magnolia Cove Estates 
Chase Beard, Owner(s) 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 11th day of March, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



2400 Magnolia Cove Lot 1



 

2400 Magnolia Cove Lot 1



2400 Magnolia Cove Lot 1



2400 Magnolia Cove Lot 1



2400 Magnolia Cove Lot 1



2400 Magnolia Cove Lot 1



Resolution Number 5139 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 5139 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 

TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated November 19, 2018, wherein all owners of certain property 

contiguous to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property 

be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 11th day of March, 2019; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing it within 

the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham News, 

a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, on the 

15th day of March, 2019. 

 2.  That on the 24th day of June, 2019, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a public 

hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition and to 

consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such hearing, 

to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance annexing the 

territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution Number 

5139 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as annexation of the 

following described property by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 



Resolution Number 5139 
Page 2 

 
2404 Magnolia Cove 

Lot 2, Magnolia Cove Estates 
Randel Walker, Owner(s) 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 11th day of March, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



2404 Magnolia Cove Lot 2



 

2404 Magnolia Cove Lot 2



2404 Magnolia Cove Lot 2



2404 Magnolia Cove Lot 2



2404 Magnolia Cove Lot 2



2404 Magnolia Cove Lot 2



Resolution Number 5140 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 5140 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 

TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated November 13, 2018, wherein all owners of certain property 

contiguous to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property 

be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 11th day of March, 2019; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing it within 

the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham News, 

a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, on the 

15th day of March, 2019. 

 2.  That on the 24th day of June, 2019, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a public 

hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition and to 

consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such hearing, 

to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance annexing the 

territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution Number 

5140 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as annexation of the 

following described property by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 



Resolution Number 5140 
Page 2 

 
2408 Magnolia Cove 

Lot 3, Magnolia Cove Estates 
David C. and Jenice M. Adcock, Owner(s) 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 11th day of March, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



2408 Magnolia Cove Lot 3



 

2408 Magnolia Cove Lot 3



2408 Magnolia Cove Lot 3



2408 Magnolia Cove Lot 3



2408 Magnolia Cove Lot 3



2408 Magnolia Cove Lot 3



Resolution Number 5141 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 5141 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 

TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated November 13, 2018, wherein all owners of certain property 

contiguous to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property 

be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 11th day of March, 2019; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing it within 

the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham News, 

a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, on the 

15th day of March, 2019. 

 2.  That on the 24th day of June, 2019, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a public 

hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition and to 

consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such hearing, 

to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance annexing the 

territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution Number 

5141 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as annexation of the 

following described property by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 



Resolution Number 5141 
Page 2 

 
2412 Magnolia Cove 

Lot 4, Magnolia Cove Estates 
Frank and Phyllis Hamrick, Owner(s) 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 11th day of March, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



2412 Magnolia Cove Lot 4



 

2412 Magnolia Cove Lot 4



2412 Magnolia Cove Lot 4



2412 Magnolia Cove Lot 4



2412 Magnolia Cove Lot 4



2412 Magnolia Cove Lot 4



2412 Magnolia Cove Lot 4



Resolution Number 5142 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 5142 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 

TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated November 19, 2018, wherein all owners of certain property 

contiguous to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property 

be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 11th day of March, 2019; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing it within 

the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham News, 

a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, on the 

15th day of March, 2019. 

 2.  That on the 24th day of June, 2019, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a public 

hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition and to 

consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such hearing, 

to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance annexing the 

territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution Number 

5142 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as annexation of the 

following described property by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 



Resolution Number 5142 
Page 2 

 
2416 Magnolia Cove 

Lot 5, Magnolia Cove Estates 
Kay Watkins, Owner(s) 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 11th day of March, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



2416 Magnolia Cove Lot 5



 

2416 Magnolia Cove Lot 5



 

 

Property recently sold; application to be submitted 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2416 Magnolia Cove Lot 5



Resolution Number 5143 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 5143 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 

TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated November 19, 2018, wherein all owners of certain property 

contiguous to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property 

be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 11th day of March, 2019; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing it within 

the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham News, 

a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, on the 

15th day of March, 2019. 

 2.  That on the 24th day of June, 2019, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a public 

hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition and to 

consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such hearing, 

to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance annexing the 

territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution Number 

5143 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as annexation of the 

following described property by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 



Resolution Number 5143 
Page 2 

 
2420 Magnolia Cove 

Lot 6, Magnolia Cove Estates 
Chase Beard, Owner(s) 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 11th day of March, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



2420 Magnolia Cove Lot 6



 

2420 Magnolia Cove Lot 6



2420 Magnolia Cove Lot 6



2420 Magnolia Cove Lot 6



2420 Magnolia Cove Lot 6



2420 Magnolia Cove Lot 6


	2019_0225CC_A
	Proclamation  Arbor Week 2019
	Proclamation National CRC Awareness Month 2019
	Proclamation Women In Construction 2019
	2019_0204_0205CC_work session
	2019_0211CC_M
	Ordinance 2826
	Ordinance 2827
	Ordinance 2829
	Ordinance 2830
	Resolution 5128
	Resolution 5129
	Resolution 5130
	Resolution 5131
	Resolution 5132
	Resolution 5133
	Resolution 5134
	Resolution 5135
	Resolution 5136
	Resolution 5137
	Resolution 5138
	Resolution 5139
	Resolution 5140
	Resolution 5141
	Resolution 5142
	Resolution 5143



